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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of Cyient DLM Limited (previously known as Cyient DLM Private Limited)
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Cyient DLM Limited {previously known as
Cyient. DLM Private Limited) (“the Company™), which comprise the Balance sheet s at March 31, 2023,
the Statement of Profit and Loss, including the Statement of Other Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow
Statement and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and notes to the financial
statements, including a.summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information .

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013, as amended (“the Act”} in
the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at, March 31, 2023, its profit including other
comprehensive income, its cash flows and the changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAS), as
specified under section. 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described
in the “Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements’ section of our report. We are
independent of the. Company in accordance with the *Code of Ethics™ issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India together with the ethical requiremients that. are relevant to our audit of the financial
statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and. the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the
financial statements.

Other Information

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises
the Director’s Report, but does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form
of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether such other information is materially inconsistent with the financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based-
on the work we have performed, we concludé that there is a material misstatement of this other information,
we arerequiréd to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
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Responsibility of Management for the Financizl Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with
respect to the preparation of these financial statemnents that give a true and fair view of the financial position,
financial performance including other comprehensive income, cash tlows and changes in equity of the
Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian
Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the
Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of
appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevarit to the preparation
and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to
continue as a going ¢oncern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also resporisible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considéred material if, individually or-in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic- decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

« Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
iisstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

+  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to-design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for
expressing ouropinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls with referénce
to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

+ Evaluafe the appropriateniess of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

«  Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report
to the related disclosures in-the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadeguate, to modify
our opinion. Qur conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up-to the date of our auditor™s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going
concermn.
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*  Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions ‘and gvents in'a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

‘We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit,

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order™), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the “Annexure 17
a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

[

Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

{a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

{b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far:
as it appears. from out examination of those books;

(¢} The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including the Statement of Other
Comprehensive income, the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with
by this Report are in agreement with the books of account;

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards specified
under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards} Rules, 2015, as
amended;

{e} On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2023 faken
on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors s disqualified as on March 31, 2023 from
being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to these financial
statements and the operating effectiveness .of such controls, refer to our separate Report in
“Annexure.2” to this report;

(g) In our opinion, the managerial remuneration for the year ended March 31, 2023 has been paid /
provided by the Company to its directors in accordance with the provisions of section 197 read with
Schedule V to the Act;

(h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule [ 1
of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and to the best of
our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i.  The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its
financial statements — Refer Note 28 to the financial statements;

fi.  The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which
there were any material foreseeable losses;

iii.  There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company.
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iv. a) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief. no funds have
been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any
other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other person or entity, including
foreign entities (“Intermediaries™), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other
persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company
(“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or provide any guarantee. security or the like on behalf of the
Ultimate Beneficiaries;

b) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, other than as
disclosed in the note 37 to the financial statements, no funds have been received by the
Company from any person or entity, including foreign entities (“Funding Parties™), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether,
directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries: and

¢) Based on such audit procedures performed that have been considered reasonable and
appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe
that the representations under sub-clause (a) and (b) contain any material misstatement.

v.  Nodividend has been declared or paid during the vear by the Company.

3. Asproviso torule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is applicable for the company only
w.e.f. April 1, 2023, reporting under this clause is not applicable

For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 101049W/E300004

per Shankar Sriniyasan
Partner

Membership Number: 213271
UDIN: 23213271BGSEHR2845
Place of Signature: Hyderabad
Date: April 17,2023
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Annexure 1 referred to in paragraph under the heading “Report on other legal and regulatory
requirements” of our report of even date on the Financial Statements of Cyient DLM Limited
{previously known as Cyient DLM Private Limited) (“the Company™)

In terms of the information and explanations sought by us and given by the company and the books of
account and records examined by us in the normal course of audit and to the best of our knowledge and
belief, we state that:

(i) (a)(A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of property, plant and equipment.

(a}(B) The Company has.maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangibles
assets,

(b) Property, Plant and Equipment have been physically verified by the management
during the year and no material discrepancies were-identified on such verification,

(c) There aré no immovable properties (other than properties where the Company is the
lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the lessee), held by
the Company and accordingly. the requirement to report on clause 3(i}(c) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company -and hence not commented upon..

(d) The Company has not revalued its property, plant and equipment including right of
use assets or intangible assets during the year ended March 31, 2023.

(e) There are no proceedings initiated or are pending against the Company for holding
any benami property under the Prohibition of Benami Property Transactions Act,
1988 and fules made thereunder.

(ii} (a) The management has conducted physical verification of inventory at reasonable
' intervals during the year. In our opinion the coverage and the procedure of such
verification by the management is appropriate. There were no discrepancies of 10%

or more ih aggregate for each class of inventory.

(b) As disclosed in note 14 to the financial staiements, the Company has been sanctioned
working capital limits in excess of Rs. five crores in aggregate from banks during
the year on the basis of security of current assets of the Company. The quarterly
returng/statements filed by the Company with such banks are in agreement with the
books of accounts of the Company. The Company has not been sanctioned working
capital limits from financial institutions during any point of time of the year,

{ii)) a) During the year the Company has not provided loans, advances in the natiire of
loans, stood guarantee or provided security to companies, firms, Limited Liability
Partnerships or any other parties. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause
3(i1)(a), 3(iiiNc), 3(HiEd), 3Giie), 3(ii)T) of the Order is not applicable to the

Company.
b) During the year the investments made is not prejudicial to the Company's interest:
(iv) Investments in respect of which provisions of section 186 of the Act are applicable

have been complied with by the Company. There are no loans, guarantees and
securities given in respect of which provisions of section 185 and 186.0f the Act are
applicable.
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{v) The Company has neither accepled any deposits from the public nor accepted any
amounts which are deemed to be deposits within the meaning of sections. 73 to 76
of the Companies Act and the rules made thereunder, to the extent applicable.
Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable.
to the Company.

{vi} We have broadly reviewed the books of account maintained by the Company
pursuant to the rules made by the Central Government for the maintenance of cost
records under section 148(1) of the Act, related to the mantfacture of electronic
manufacturing solutions, and are of the opinion that prima facie, the specified
accounts and records have been made and maintained. We have not, however, made
a detailed examination of the same.

(vii) (a) The Comipany ‘is regular in depositing with- appropriate authorities undisputed
statutory dues imcluding goods and services tax, provident fund, employees’ state
insurance, income-tax, duty of customs and other statutory dues applicable to it. The
provisions relating to sales tax, service tax, value added tax, duty of excise arid cess
are not applicable to the Company. According to the information and explanations
given'to us and based on audit procedures performed by us, no undisputed amounts
payable in respect of goods and services tax, provident fund, employees’ state
insurance, income-tax, duty of customs and other statutory dues were outstanding,
at the year end, for a period of more than six months from the date they became
payable.

(b) The dues of goods and services tax, provident fund, employees’ state insurance,
income-tax, duty of customg and other statutory dues have not been deposited on
account of any dispute, are as follows: _

Name of the | Nature of | Forum where | Period to which Ameount

statute the dues | the disputeis | the amount involved
pending relates {Rs. In Mn)
Income Tax . _ FY 2016-17 5.11
Act, 1961 | Incometax | CIT (Appeals) gy 5077 7 12.00
{viii) The Company has not surrendered or disclosed any transaction, previously

unrecorded in the hooks of account, in-the tax assessments under the Tncome Tax

Act, 1961 as incomé during the year. Accordingly, the requitement to report on
clause 3(viii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.
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(ix)

(x)

(xi)

(xif)

(xiii)

{xiv)

(2)

(b)

(c}
(d)

(e)

(0

(2)

(b)

(a)

(b)

(¢)

(a)

(b)

The Company has not defaulted in repayiment of loans or other borrowings or in the
payment of interest thereon to any lender,

The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial
institution or government or any government authority.

Term loans-were applied for the purpose for which the loans were obtained.

On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, no funds-

raised on short-term basis have been used for long-term purposes by the Company.

The Company does not have any subsidiary, associate or joint venture. Accordingly,
the requirement to report on clause 3(ix)(e) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

The Company does not have any subsidiary, associate or joint venture. Accordingly,
the requirement to report on clause 3(ix) () of the Order is nat applicable to the
Company.

The Company has not raised any money during the year by way of initial public
offer (including debt insiruments) hence, the reguirement to report on clause 3(x){a)
of the Order is not.applicable to the Company.

Adcording to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall
examination .of the balance sheet, the Company has not made any preferential
allotment or private placement of shares /fully or partially or optionally convertible
debentures during the year under audit and hence, the requirement to report on clause.
3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

No fraud by the Caompany or no fraud on the Company has been noticed or reported
during the year.

During the year, no report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies

Act, 2013 has been filed by costauditor/ secretarial auditor or by us in Form ADT -
4 as prescribed under Rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with
the Ceritral Government.

As represented to us by the management, there are no whistle blower complaints
received by the Company during the year.

The Company is not a nidhi Company as per the provisions of the Companies Act,
2013. Therefore, the requirement to report on. clause 3(xii) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

Transactions with the related parties are in compliance with sections 177 and 188 of
Companies Act, 2013 where applicablé and the details have been disclosed in the
notes to the financial statements, as required by the applicable dccounting standards.

The- Company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature
of its business.

The internal audit reports of the Company issued till the date of the audit report, for
the period under audit have been considered by us.
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(xv) The Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or
persons connected with its directors and hence requirement to report on clause 3(xv)
of the-Order is-not applicable to the Company.

{xvi} (a) The provisions of section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 (2 of 1934}
are. not applicable to the Company. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause
(xvi)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(b) The Company has not conducted any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance
activities. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause (xvi)(b) of the Order is
not applicable to the Company.

(c) The Company is not a Core Investment Company as defined in the regulations made
by Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause- 3(xvi)
of the Order is not applicable to the' Company.

{d) There is no Core Investment Company as a part of the Group. Accordingly, the
requirement to report on clause 3(xvi) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

{xvii) The Company has not incurred cash losses in the current year and in the immediately
preceding financial year respectively.

{(xviii) There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year and
accordingly requirement to report on Clause 3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable
to the Company.

(xix} On the basis of the financial ratios disclosed. in note 33 to the financial statements,

ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment of financial
liabilities, other infotmation accompanying the financial statements, our knowlédge
of the Board of Directors and management plang and based on our-examination of
the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which
causes us to believe that ariy material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit
report that Company i§ not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of
balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance
sheet date. We, however, state that this is not-an assurance as to the future viability
of the Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up o the
date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all
liabilities. falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will
get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.
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(xx) (a) In respect of other than ongoing projects, there are no unspent amounts that are
required to be transferred to a fund specified in Schedule VII of the Companies Act
(the Act), in compliance with second proviso to sub section 5 of section 135 of the
Act. This matter has been disclosed in note 27 to the financial statements.

(b) There are no unspent amounts in respect of ongoing projects, that are required to be
transferred to a special account in compliance of provision of sub section (6) of
section 135 of Companies Act. This matter has been disclosed in note 27 to the
Standalone Financial Statements.

For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 101049W/E300004

CHARTERED

; \ACCOUNTANTS

per Shankar Srinivasan
Partner

Membership Number: 213271
UDIN: 23213271BGSEHR2845
Place of Signature: Hyderabad
Date: April 17,2023
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ANNEXURE 2 TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF CYLENT DLM LIMTED (PREVIOUSLY KNOWN AS CYIENT
DLM PRIVATE LIMITED)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause {i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference fo financial statements of Cyient DLM Limited
(previously known as Cyient DLM Private Limited) (“the Company™) as of March 31, 2023 in conjunction
with our audit of the financial statements of the Company for the year ended on-that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s Management ‘is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the
essential.components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls
Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (*ICAI™). These
responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls
that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, -including
adherence to the Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds
and errors, the accuracy and conipleteness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable
financial information, as required under the Companies Act. 2013.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an- opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to
these financial statements based-on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note
on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note™).and the Standards
on Auditing, as specified under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal
financial controls, both issued by ICAI: Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with
ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate
internal financial controls with reference to these financial statements was established and maintained and if
'such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obfain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to these financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an understanding of
internal financial controls with reference to these financial statements, assessing the risk that a material.
weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal contro] based
on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment,
‘of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to these financial statements.
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls With Reference to these Financial Statements

A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements includes those policies and procedures that
(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company: (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions
are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance
with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance
regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition. use, or disposition of the company’s
assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls With Reference to Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also. projections of any evaluation of the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the
internal financial control with reference to financial statements may become inadequate because of changes
in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with reference
to financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference to financial statements were
operating effectively as at March 31, 2023, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance
Note issued by the ICAL

For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 101049W/E300004

FohL

ger—S‘h‘ﬁ'ri'l&‘Srmw#san ) ig&%ﬁf NETg
artner -
Membership Number: 213271
UDIN: 23213271 BGSEHR2845
Place of Signature: Hyderabad
Date: April 17,2023




Cyient DLM Limited (Formerly known as Cyient DLM Private Limited)
(CIN No.: U31909TG1993PLC141346)
Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2023

(All amounts in ¥ millions, except share and per share data and where otherwise stated)

Particulars Notes As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 3A 1,217.50 1,294.83
Right of use assets 3B 345.28 382.86
Capital work-in-progress 3C 13.34 33.91
Goodwill 30.30 30.30
Other intangible assets 5 16.46 14.12
Financial assets
(a) Investments 6 895.22 3.22
(b) Other financial assets 7 34.97 38.80
Deferred tax assets (net) 17.2 53.79 38.98
Income tax assets 17.3 5.03 5.03
Other non-current assets 8 38.41 8.11
Total non-current assets 2,650.30 1,850.16
Current assets
Inventories 9 4,250.83 2,695.62
Financial assets
(a) Trade receivables 10 1,617.48 1,523.25
(b) Cash and cash equivalents 11A 773.41 768.59
(c) Other bank balances 11B 902.60 449,49
(d) Other financial assets 7 54.66 22.33
Other current assets 8 797.90 459.70
Total current assets 8,396.88 5,918.98
Total assets 11,047.18 7,769.14
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQUITY
Equity share capital 12 528.66 13.67
Other equity 13 1,450.06 757.45
Total equity 1,978.72 771.12
LIABILITIES
Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities
(a) Borrowings 14 995.63 995.63
(b) Lease liabilities 38 362.56 377.19
(c) Other financial liabilities 15 166.32 113.10
Provisions 16 95.27 59.61
Other non-current liabilities 18 - 260.83
Total non-current liabilities 1,619.78 1,806.36
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities
(a) Borrowings 14 2,149.11 1,936.30
(b) Lease liabilities 38 53.21 59.71
(c) Trade payables
(i) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 19 69.17 32.06
(ii) total outstanding dues of creditors ather than micro enterprises and small enterprises 19 2,783.45 1,892.79
(d) Other financial liabilities 15 76.49 41.33
Income tax liabilities (net) 17.3 21.90 60.63
Provisions 16 2.99 13.36
Other current liabilities 18 2,292.36 1,155.48
Total current liabilities 7,448.68 5,191.66
Total liabilities 9,068.46 6,998.02
Total equity and liabilities 11,047.18 7,769.14
Corporate information and significant accounting policies 1&2

Accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements
As per our report of even date

For 5.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP

Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm registration number: 101049W/E300004
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For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

M Limited

N—

Kri
Non - Executive Chairman

na Bodanapu Rajendra Velagapudi
Managing Director

(DIN - D0605187) DIN - 06507627) w
]%u \n‘.lﬁ" )k \Q W’W
Parvati K R hri Kulkarni

Company Secretary
(M.No. - A23584)

ief Financial Officer

Place: Hyderabad

Date: April 17, 2023
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Cyient DLM Limited (Formerly known as Cyient DLM Private Limited)
(CIN No.: U31909TG1993PLC141346)
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2023

(All amounts in ¥ millions, except share and per share data and where otherwise stated)

paitictlais — For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
INCOME
Revenue from operations 20 8,320.33 7,205.33
Other income 21 63.11 79.51
Total income 8,383.44 7,284.84
EXPENSES
Cost of materials consumed 22 6,341.53 5,552.88
Changes in inventories of finished goods and werk-in-progress 23 110.61 (113.26)
Employee benefits expense 24 646.94 516.52
Finance costs 25 315.16 219.75
Depreciation and amortisation expense 26 194.15 192.86
Other expenses 27 343.45 408.79
Total expenses 7,951.84 6,777.54
Profit before tax 431.60 507.30
Tax expense [ (benefit)
(a) Current tax 17.1(A) 129.71 96.35
(b) Deferred tax 17.1(A) (15.38) 13.00

Total tax expense / (benefit) 114.33 109.35
Profit for the year 317.27 397.95
Other comprehensive income (OCI)
Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to statement of profit or loss:

(i} Remeasurement gains/(losses) of net defined benefit liability 29 2.28 (4.47)

(i) Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss 17.1 (B) (0.57) 142
Total other comprehensive income/(loss) for the year, net of tax 171 (3.35)
Total comprehensive income for the year, net of tax 318.98 394.60
Earnings per equity share (face value of X 10 each) 31

Basic and diluted (X)* 7.75 16.17
Corporate information and significant accounting policies 18&2

Accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements
* Refer note 31 for adjustment made towards bonus issue.
As per our report of even date

For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm regi ion number: 101049W/E300004

Tinivasan
Partner
Membership No.: 213271

Place: Hyderabad
Date: April 17, 2023

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Cyient,DLM Limited

risina Bodanapu
Non - Executive Chairman
(DIN - 00605187)

Pcu\aj-\ Jer

Parvati KR
Company Secretary
(M.No. - A23584)

Place: Hyderabad
Date: April 17, 2023

‘DVM
Rajendra Velagapudi

Managing Director
(DIN - 06507627)

Chief Fiffancial Officer

Place: Hyderabad
Date: April 17, 2023




Cyient DLM Limited (Formerly known as Cyient DLM Private Limited)

(CIN No.: U31909TG1993PLC141346)

Statement of Cash Flow for the year ended March 31, 2023

(All amounts in X millions, except share and per share data and where otherwise stated)

For the year ended
Particulars
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
A. CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit/(loss) for the year 317.27 397.95
Adjustments for:
Tax expense 114.33 109.35
Depreciation and amortisation expense 194.15 192.86
Loss/ (Profit) on sale of Property, Plant and Equipment (net) 5.56 (0.94)
Net unrealised exchange loss/(gain) 6.47 15.45
Finance costs 296.59 190.61
Interest income (30.01) (16.09)’
Expected credit loss allowance, net 13.89 (13.15)
Operating profit before working capital changes 918.25 876.04
Changes in working capital
Adjustments for (increase) / decrease in operating assets:
Trade receivables (106.57) 758.78
Inventaries (1,555.21) (1,141.15)
Other assets and other financial assets (352.61) (181.92)
Adjustments for increase / (decrease) in operating liabilities:
Trade payables 913.80 7.65
Provisions, other liabilities and other financial liabilities 871.83 228.01
Cash generated from operations 689.49 547.41
Income taxes received/{paid), net (168.44) (62.04)
Net cash flow from operating activities (A) 521.05 485.37
B. CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Investment in equity instruments (892.00)
Payment towards purchase of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets (76.20) (84.14)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment - 7.06
Investment in deposits (2,413.61) (323.00)
Proceeds from maturity / withdrawal of Deposits 1,960.50 68.58
Interest received 2.90 7.36
Net cash flow used in investing activities (B) (1,418.41) {324.14)
€. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from rights issue of shares (Note 12) 888.62 %
Proceeds from current borrowings 3,950.00 2,551.91
Repayments of current borrowings (3,893.07) (1,961.18)
Repayment of lease liabilities (including interest) (60.58) (56.96)
Interest paid (144.62) (73.10)
MNet cash flow from/{used in) financing activities (C) 740.35 460.67
Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) {157.01) 621.90
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 768.59 146.69
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year (refer note (i) below) 611.58 768.59
Notes :
(i) Cash and cash equivalents comprises of: (refer note 11A)
Balances with banks
in current accounts 582.56 707.29
Remittances in transit 190.84 61.29
Cash on hand 0.01 0.01
773.41 768.59
Bank overdraft account balances (161.83) -
611.58 768.59

Accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements
As per our report of even date

For 5.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm registration number: 101049W/E300004

Partner
Membership No.: 213271

Place: Hyderabad
Date: April 17, 2023

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Cyien Limited

i

rishfia Bodanapu Rajendra Velagapudi
Non - Executive Chairman Managing Director
(DIN - 00605187} (DIN - 06507627)
Pm\u.gi 1<
Parvati KR -
Company Secretary Chief Financial Officer

{M.No. - A23584)

Place: Hyderabad
Date: April 17, 2023

ce: Hyderabad
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Q,Wmt : April 17. 2023
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Cyient DLM Limited (Formerly known as Cyient DLM Private Limited)

(CIN No.: U31909TG1993PLC141346)

Statement of changes in equity for the year ended March 31, 2023

(All amounts in X millions, except share and per share data and where otherwise stated)

A. Equity share capital

Particulars Note No's Amount
Balance as at April 01, 2021 12 1,367,000 13.67
Balance as at March 31, 2022 12 1,367,000 13.67
Add: Issue of equity shares during the year 12 1,570,000 15.70
Add: Issue of bonus shares during the year 7} 49,929,000 499.29
Balance as at March 31, 2023 12 52,866,000 528.66

i. On September 9, 2022, the Company allotted 1,570,000 fully paid-up equity shares of face value of % 10/- each at issue price of % 566 per share, pursuant to a rights issue. (Refer
Note 12 for details)

ii. On December 14, 2022, the Company allotted 4,99,29,000 fully paid-up equity shares of face value of X 10/- each, pursuant to a bonus issue.

(Refer Note 12 for details)

B. Other Equity

Particulars Reserves and Surplus Total
Note Securities premium General reserve Retained earnings
Balance as at April 1, 2021 92.09 3.72 267.04 362.85
Profit for the year 13 - - 397.95 397.95
Other comprehensive Income 13 - - (3.35) (3.35)
Balance as at March 31, 2022 92.09 3.72 661.64 757.45
Profit for the year 13 - - 317.27 317.27
Other comprehensive Income 13 7 = 1.71 171
Right issue of shares 12 872,92 - - 872.92
Utilization for bonus shares 12 (499.29) - - (499.29)
Balance as at March 31, 2023 465.72 3.72 980.62 1,450.06

Corporate information and significant accounting policies 182
Accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements
As per our report of even date

For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants

tion number: 101049W/E300004

frdl

Rajendra Velagapudi
Managing Director
(DIN - 06507627)

rishna Bodanapu
Non - Executive Chairman
(DIN - 00605187)

quu."\‘ lex

Parvati KR
Company Secretary
(M.No. - A23584)

Chi&f Financial Officer

Place: Hyderabad
Date: April 17, 2023

Place: Hyderabad
Date: April 17, 2023

Place: Hyderabad
Date: April 17, 2023
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Cyient DLM Limited (Formerly known as Cyient DLM Private Limited)

CIN No.: U31909TG1993PLC141346

Significant accounting policies and other explanatory information forming part of financial
statements

(All amounts in X million, except share and per share data and where otherwise stated)

Corporate information:

The financial statements comprise financials statements of Cyient DLM Limited (formerly known as ‘Cyient DLM
Private Limited’) (the ‘Company’) for the year ended March 31, 2023. The company is a public limited company
domiciled in India and is incorporated under the provisions of the Companies Act, applicable in India and is
subsidiary of Cyient Limited (Ultimate Holding Company). The registered office of the Company is at 3rd floor,
Plot No. 11, Software Layout Units, Infocity, Hyderabad, Telangana - 500081.

The Company is principally engaged in providing total electronic manufacturing solutions in the fields of medical,
industrial, automotive, telecommunication, defense and aerospace applications and machining of components
for aerospace, automotive and defense industries. The Financial statements was approved for issue in
accordance with a resolution of the directors on April 17, 2023.

Significant accounting policies
Basis of preparation & presentation:

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards
(Ind AS) notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended from time to
time) and presentation requirements of Division Il of Schedule Il to the Companies Act, 2013, (Ind AS compliant
Schedule I}, as applicable to the financial statements.

These financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis except for certain financial assets and
liabilities measured at fair value (refer accounting policy regarding financial instruments) and consistent with
previous year subject to changes in accounting policies. The financial statements are presented in INR, and all
values are rounded to the nearest millions, except when otherwise indicated.

Current versus non-current classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current classification.
An asset is treated as current when it is:
e Expected to be realized or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle.
e Held-primarily for the purpose of trading
e Expected to be realized within twelve months after the reporting period, or
e Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least
twelve months after the reporting period

All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is current when:
® Itis expected to be settled in normal operating cycle
e Itis held primarily for the purpose of trading
e [tis due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or
e There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the
reporting period.

The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-current.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.
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Cyient DLM Limited (Formerly known as Cyient DLM Private Limited)

CIN No.: U31909TG1993PLC141346

Significant accounting policies and other explanatory information forming part of financial
statements

(All amounts in X million, except share and per share data and where otherwise stated)

Based on the nature of products and the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their
realization in cash and cash equivalents, the Company has ascertained its operating cycle as 12 months for the
purpose of current or non - current classification of assets and liabilities.

Significant accounting judgement, estimates and assumptions:

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with the recognition and measurement principles of Ind
AS requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported balances of
revenue, expenses, assets and liabilities, accompanying disclosures and the disclosure of contingent liabilities.

Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment
to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in future periods.

Judgements
In the process of applying the Company accounting policies, management has made the following judgements,
which have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements:

e Determining the lease term of contracts with renewal and termination options — Company as lessee
The Company determines the lease term as the non-cancellable term of the lease, together with any periods
covered by an option to extend the lease if it is reasonably certain to be exercised, or any periods covered
by an option to terminate the lease, if it is reasonably certain not to be exercised.

Estimates and assumptions

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting
date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year, are described below. The Company based its assumptions and estimates on
parameters available when the financial statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions
about future developments, however, may change due to market changes or circumstances arising that are
beyond the control of the Company. Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when they occur.

e Impairment of non-financial assets

Impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset or cash generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount,
which is the higher of its fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. The fair value less costs of disposal
calculation is based on available data from binding sales transactions, conducted at arm’s length, for similar
assets or observable market prices less incremental costs for disposing of the asset. The value in use calculation
is based on a DCF model. The cash flows are derived from the budget for the next five years and do not include
restructuring activities that the Company is not yet committed to or significant future investments that will
enhance the asset’s performance of the CGU being tested. The recoverable amount is sensitive to the discount
rate used for the DCF model as well as the expected future cash-inflows and the growth rate used for
extrapolation purposes. These estimates are most relevant to goodwill and other intangibles with indefinite
useful lives recognised by the Company. Refer Note 4 of Financial statements for details on impairment
evaluation of goodwill.




Cyient DLM Limited (Formerly known as Cyient DLM Private Limited)

CIN No.: U31909TG1993PLC141346

Significant accounting policies and other explanatory information forming part of financial
statements

(All amounts in % million, except share and per share data and where otherwise stated)

e  Provision for expected credit losses of trade receivables

The Company applies the simplified approach permitted by Ind AS 109 Financial Instruments, which requires
expected lifetime losses to be recognized from initial recognition of the receivables. As a practical expedient,
the Company uses a provision matrix to determine impairment loss of its trade receivables. The provision matrix
is based on its historically observed default rates over the expected life of the trade receivable and is adjusted
for forward looking estimates. The ECL loss allowance (or reversal) during the year is recognized in the statement
of profit and loss.

At every reporting date, the historical observed default rates are updated and changes in the forward-looking
estimates are analysed.

The assessment of the correlation between historical observed default rates, forecast economic conditions and
ECLs is a significant estimate. The amount of ECLs is sensitive to changes in circumstances and of forecast
economic conditions. The Company historical credit loss experience and forecast of economic conditions may
also not be representative of customer’s actual default in the future. Refer note 10 of financial statements for
details on ECL.

e Taxes

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will
be available against which the losses can be utilised. Significant management judgement is required to
determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based upon the likely timing and the level
of future taxable profits together with future tax planning strategies. Refer Note 17 of financial statements for
details on Recognition of deferred tax assets, availability of future taxable profit against which tax losses carried
forward can be used.

* Defined benefit plans (gratuity benefits)

The cost of the defined benefit gratuity plan and the present value of the gratuity obligation are determined
using actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ from
actual developments in the future. These include the determination of the discount rate, future salary increases
and mortality rates. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, a defined benefit
obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting
date. Refer Note 29 of financial statements for Measurement of defined benefit obligations, key actuarial
assumptions. The parameter most subject to change is the discount rate. In determining the appropriate
discount rate for plans operated in India, the management considers the interest rates of government bonds
where remaining maturity of such bond correspond to expected term of defined benefit obligation.

The mortality rate is based on publicly available mortality tables. Those mortality tables tend to change only at
interval in response to demographic changes. Future salary increases and gratuity increases are based on
expected future inflation rates.

®  Fair value measurement of financial instruments

When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet cannot be measured
based on quoted prices in active markets, their fair value is measured using valuation techniques including the
DCF model.

The inputs to these models are taken from observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a
degree of judgement is required in establishing fair values. Judgements include considerations of inputs such as
liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility. Changes in assumptions about these factors could affect the r
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Cyient DLM Limited (Formerly known as Cyient DLM Private Limited)
CIN No.: U31909TG1993PLC141346
Significant accounting policies and other explanatory information forming part of financial

statements
(All amounts in X million, except share and per share data and where otherwise stated)

Goodwill

Goodwillis initially measured at cost, being the excess of the aggregate of the consideration transferred and the
amount recognised for non-controlling interests, and any previous interest held, over the net identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities assumed. If the fair value of the net assets acquired is in excess of the aggregate
consideration transferred, the Company re-assesses whether it has correctly identified all of the assets acquired
and all of the liabilities assumed and reviews the procedures used to measure the amounts to be recognised at
the acquisition date. If the reassessment still results in an excess of the fair value of net assets acquired over the
aggregate consideration transferred, then the gain is recognised in OCI and accumulated in equity as capital
reserve. However, if there is no clear evidence of bargain purchase, the entity recognises the gain directly in
equity as capital reserve, without routing the same through OCI.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any accumulated impairment losses. For the purpose
of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is, from the acquisition date, allocated to
each of the company’s cash-generating units that are expected to benefit from the combination, irrespective of
whether other assets or liabilities of the acquiree are assigned to those units.

A cash generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment annually, or more
frequently when there is an indication that the unit may be impaired. If the recoverable amount of the cash
generating unit is less than its carrying amount, the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying
amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit and then to the other assets of the unit pro rata based on the
carrying amount of each asset in the unit. Any impairment loss for goodwill is recognised in profit or loss. An
impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in subsequent periods.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit and part of the operation within that unit is
disposed of, the goodwill associated with the disposed operation is included in the carrying amount of the
operation when determining the gain or loss on disposal. Goodwill disposed in these circumstances is measured
based on the relative values of the disposed operation and the portion of the cash-generating unit retained.

If the initial accounting for a business combination is incomplete by the end of the reporting period in which the
combination occurs, the Company reports provisional amounts for the items for which the accounting is
incomplete. Those provisional amounts are adjusted through goodwill during the measurement period, or
additional assets or liabilities are recognised, to reflect new information obtained about facts and circumstances
that existed at the acquisition date that, if known, would have affected the amounts recognized at that date.
These adjustments are called as measurement period adjustments. The measurement period does not exceed
one year from the acquisition date.

Foreign currency translation

Functional and presentation currency
The Financial statements are presented in Indian rupees, which is the functional and presentation currency of
the Company.

Transactions and balances
In preparing the Financial statements of the Company, transactions in currencies other than the entity’s
functional currency (foreign currencies) are recognized at the rates of exchange prevailing at the dates o
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Cyient DLM Limited (Formerly known as Cyient DLM Private Limited)
CIN No.: U31909TG1993PLC141346
Significant accounting policies and other explanatory information forming part of financial

statements
(All amounts in X million, except share and per share data and where otherwise stated)

the carrying amount of the asset and is recognized in profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and non-monetary liabilities denominated in a foreign currency and measured at fair value
are translated at the exchange rate prevalent at the date when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary
items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Transaction gains or losses realized upon settlement of foreign currency transactions are included in determining
net profit for the period in which the transaction is settled.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are initially recognized at cost. The initial cost of property, plant and equipment
comprises its purchase price, including non-refundable duties and taxes net of any trade discounts and rebates.

The cost of property, plant and equipment includes interest on borrowings (borrowing cost) directly attributable
to acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets subsequent to initial recognition, property, plant
and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation (other than freehold land, which are stated at
cost) and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Capital work in progress is stated at cost, net of accumulated
impairment loss, if any.

The Company depreciates property, plant and equipment over their estimated useful lives using the straight-
line method as per the useful life prescribed in Schedule Il to the Companies Act, 2013 except in respect of the
following categories of assets, in whose case the life of the assets has been assessed, based on technical advice,
taking into account the nature of the asset, the estimated usage of the asset, the operating conditions of the
asset, past history of replacement, anticipated technological changes, manufacturers warranties and
maintenance support.

Type of asset Useful life of the Company [ As per Schedule Il of Act

Buildings Refer Note 1 below

Plant & Machinery 5-15 Years (refer note 2 below) 15 years
Tools & Equipment 5 Years (refer note 2 below) 10 years
Furniture & Fixtures 10 Years 10 years
Electrical Installations 10 Years 10 Years
Vehicles 10 Years 10 Years
Computers 3-5 Years 3 Years
Office Equipment 5 Years 5 Years

Notes:

1. Buildings constructed over leasehold land are depreciated over remaining lease term of land or life as
specified under Schedule Il of the Act, whichever is lower

2. The Company, based on technical assessment made by technical expert and management estimate,
depreciates certain items of Plant & Machinery, Computers and Tools & Equipment over estimated useful
lives which are different from the useful life prescribed in Schedule Il to the Companies Act, 2013. The
management believes that these estimated useful lives are realistic and reflect fair approximation of the
period over which the assets are likely to be used.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic benefits
are expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement
of an item of property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference between the sales
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Cyient DLM Limited (Formerly known as Cyient DLM Private Limited)
CIN No.: U31909TG1993PLC141346
Significant accounting policies and other explanatory information forming part of financial

statements
(All amounts in X million, except share and per share data and where otherwise stated)

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at
each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

On transition to Ind AS (i.e. 1 April 2016), the Company has elected to continue with the carrying value of all
Property, plant and equipment measured as per the previous GAAP and use that carrying value as the deemed
cost of Property, plant and equipment.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets are stated at cost less accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment. Intangible
assets are amortized over their estimated useful life on a straight-line basis as follows:

Type of asset Useful life
Computer software 3 years

An intangible asset is de-recognized on disposal, or when no future economic benefits are expected from use.
Gains or losses arising from de-recognition of an intangible asset, measured as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset, are recognized in ‘other income’ of statement of profit
and loss when the asset is de-recognized.

On transition to Ind AS (i.e. 1 April 2016), the Company has elected to continue with the carrying value of all
intangible assets measured as per the previous GAAP and use that carrying value as the deemed cost of
intangible assets.

Amortization methods and useful lives are reviewed periodically at each financial year end.
Leases
Company as lessee

The Company assesses whether a contract contains a lease, at inception of a contract. A contract is, or contains,
a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange
for consideration.

At the date of commencement of the lease, the Company recognizes a right-of-use asset (“ROU”) and a
corresponding lease liability for all lease arrangements in which it is a lessee, except for leases with a term of
twelve months or less (short-term leases) and low value leases. For these short-term and low value leases, the
Company recognizes the lease payments as an operating expense on a straight-line basis over the term of the
lease.

Certain lease arrangements include the options to extend or terminate the lease before the end of the lease
term. ROU assets and lease liabilities includes these options when it is reasonably certain that they will be
exercised.
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Cyient DLM Limited (Formerly known as Cyient DLM Private Limited)

CIN No.: U31909TG1993PLC141346

Significant accounting policies and other explanatory information forming part of financial
statements

(All amounts in X million, except share and per share data and where otherwise stated)

Right-of-use assets

The right-of-use assets are initially recognized at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability
adjusted for any lease payments made at or prior to the commencement date of the lease plus any initial direct
costs less any lease incentives. They are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities.

Right-of-use assets are depreciated from the commencement date on a straight-line basis over the shorter of
the lease term and useful life of the underlying asset. Right of use assets are evaluated for recoverability
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that their carrying amounts may not be recoverable. The
right-of-use assets are also subject to impairment.

ROU asset Useful lives
Leasehold land 19 years
Buildings 3-10 years

Lease liabilities

The lease liability is initially measured at amortized cost at the present value of the future lease payments. The
lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if not readily determinable, using
the incremental borrowing rates in the country of domicile of the leases. After the commencement date, the
amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced for the lease payments
made or a change in the assessment of extension or termination options. Lease liabilities are remeasured with
a corresponding adjustment to the related right of use asset if there is a modification, a change in the lease term,
a change in the lease payments (e.g., changes to future payments resulting from a change in an index or rate
used to determine such lease payments).

Lease liability and ROU asset have been separately presented in the Balance Sheet and lease payments have
been classified as financing cash flows.

Income taxes:

The income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax payable or tax receivable on the taxable income based
on the applicable income tax rate in India adjusted by changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities attributable
to temporary differences and to unused tax losses.

Current and deferred tax is recognized in statement of profit and loss, except to the extent that it relates to
items recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also recognized in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

The current tax and deferred tax calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the
end of the reporting period in India.

Deferred tax is provided in full, using the balance sheet method, on temporary differences arising between the
tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the Financial statements. However, deferred tax
liabilities are not recognized if they arise from the initial recognition of goodwill. Deferred tax is also not
accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction other than a business




2.10

2.11

Cyient DLM Limited (Formerly known as Cyient DLM Private Limited)
CIN No.: U31909TG1993PLC141346
Significant accounting policies and other explanatory information forming part of financial

statements
(All amounts in X million, except share and per share data and where otherwise stated)

Deferred tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences and unused tax losses only if it is
probable that future taxable amounts will be available to utilize those temporary differences and losses.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets
and liabilities and when the deferred tax balances relate to the same taxation authority. Current tax assets and
tax liabilities are offset where the entity has a legally enforceable right to offset and intends either to settle on
a net basis, or to realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Minimum Alternate tax (MAT) paid in a year is charged to the statement of profit and loss as current tax for the
year. MAT credit is recognized in accordance with tax laws in India as a deferred tax asset only to the extent that
is probable that the Company will pay normal income tax during the specified period i.e. the period for which
MAT credit is allowed to be carried forward. The Company reviews the MAT credit at each balance sheet date
and writes down the carrying amount of MAT credit entitlement to the extent there is no longer convincing
evidence to the effect that the Company will pay normal income tax during the specified period.

In the situations where one or more units in the Company are entitled to a tax holiday under the Income-tax
Act, 1961 enacted in India or tax laws prevailing in the respective tax jurisdictions where they operate, no
deferred tax (asset or liability) is recognized in respect of temporary differences which reverse during the tax
holiday period, to the extent the concerned entity’s gross total income is subject to the deduction during the tax
holiday period. Deferred tax in respect of temporary differences which reverse after the tax holiday period is
recognized in the year in which the temporary differences originate. However, the Company restricts recognition
of deferred tax assets to the extent it is probable that sufficient future taxable income will be available against
which such deferred tax assets can be realized. For recognition of deferred taxes, the temporary differences
which originate first are considered to reverse first.

Inventories:
Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realizable value.

Costs of inventories are determined on a weighted average basis. Net realizable value represents the estimated
selling price for inventories less all estimated costs of completion and costs necessary to make the sale.

Inventories are valued in accordance with the below method of valuation.

(i) Raw materials & consumables: Valued at cost or net realizable value whichever is less. Cost includes purchase
costs and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition.

(i) Stores and spares: Valued at cost. Cost includes purchase costs and other costs incurred in bringing the
inventories to their present location and condition.

(iii) Work in progress & finished Goods: Valued at cost or net realizable value whichever is less. Costs includes
direct material costs, wages and applicable overheads.

Cash and cash equivalents:

Cash comprises cash on hand, in bank and demand deposits with banks. The Company considers all hi
financial instruments, which are readily convertible into cash and have original maturities of thr
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Cash flows are reported using indirect method, whereby profit / (loss) after tax is adjusted for the effects of
transaction of taxes, non- cash nature and any deferrals or accruals of past or future cash receipts or payments.
The cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities of the Company are segregated hased on the
available information.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

2.11.1 Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past
events, it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation and the amount can
be reliably estimated,

Provisions are measured at the present value of management’s best estimate of the expenditure required to
settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting period. The discount rate used to determine the present
value is a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific
to the liability. The increase in the Pprovision due to the passage of time is recognized as an interest expense.
Provisions are not recognized for future operating losses.

Provisions for onerous contracts are recognized when the expected benefits to be desired by the Company from
a contract are lower than unavoidable costs of meeting to future obligations under the contract and are
measured at the present value of lower than expected net cost of fulfilling the contract and expected cost of
terminating the contract.

2.11.2 Contingencies

Contingent liability is disclosed for all possible obligation that arises from past events and whose existence will
be confirmed only by the occurrence Or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly
within the control of the company (or) present obligations arising from past events where it is not probable that
an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation or a sufficiently
reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation cannot be made. Contingent liabilities are not recognized in
the Financial statements but discloses its existence in the Financial statementss unless the probability of outflow
of resources is remote. A contingent asset is neither recognized nor disclosed in the Financial statements.

Revenue recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised, on the basis of approved contracts, when control of the
goods or services are transferred to the Customer at an amount that reflects the consideration entitled in
exchange for those goods or services. The Company is the principal as it typically controls the goods or services
before transferring them to the customer.

Revenue from sale of goods is recognised at the point in time when control of the goods is transferred to the
customer, generally upon delivery of the goods. Revenue from rendering of services is recognised over time by
measuring the progress towards complete satisfaction of performance obligations at the reporting period.

Revenue towards satisfaction of a performance obligation is measured at the amount of transaction price (net
of variable consideration) allocated to that performance obligation. The arrangement with customer specj
services to be rendered which meet criteria of performance obligations. For allocation, transaction
Company measures the revenue in respect of each performance obligation of a contract at
andalone selling price. The transaction price of goods sold and services rendered is net
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consideration. Variable consideration includes incentives, volume rebates, discounts etc., which is estimated at
contract inception considering the terms of various schemes with customers and constrained until it is highly
probable that a significant revenue reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue recognised will not occur when
the associated uncertainty with the variable consideration is subsequently resolved. It is reassessed at end of
each reporting period.

Trade receivables
A receivable is recognised if an amount of consideration that is unconditional (i.e., only the passage of time is

required before payment of the consideration is due). Refer to accounting policies of financial assets in section
2.19 Financial instruments — initial recognition and subsequent measurement.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised if a payment is received or a payment is due (whichever is earlier) from a
customer before the Company transfers the related goods or services. Contract liabilities are recognised as
revenue when the Company performs under the contract (i.e., transfers control of the related goods or services
to the customer).

Generally, the Company receives advances from few of its customers. If there is manufacturing lead time of
more than 1 year after signing the contract and receipt of payment, then there is a significant financing
component for these contracts considering the length of time between the customers’ payment and the transfer
of the goods. As such, the transaction price for these contracts is discounted, using the interest rate implicit in
the contract (i.e., the interest rate that discounts the cash selling price of the equipment to the amount paid in
advance). This rate is commensurate with the rate that would be reflected in a separate financing transaction
between the Company and the customer at contract inception. Using the practical expedient in Ind AS 115, the
Company does not adjust the promised amount of consideration for the effects of a significant financing
component if it expects, at contract inception, that the period between the transfer of the promised good or
service to the customer and when the customer pays for that good or service will be one year or less.

Interest Income

Interest income from a financial asset is recognized when it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to
the Company and the amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest income is accrued on a time basis,
by reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable.

Government grants/incentives

Government grants are recognized when there is a reasonable assurance that:
a) The Company will comply with the conditions attached to them; and
b) The grant will be received.

Export entitlements from government authorities are recognized in the statement of profit and loss when the
right to receive credit as per the terms of the scheme is established in respect of the exports made by the
Company, and where there is no significant uncertainty regarding the ultimate collection of the relevant export
proceeds. Grants are recognized net of attributable expenses.
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Employee benefit plans

Employee benefits include provided fund, employee's state insurance scheme, gratuity fund and compensated
absences.

Post-employment obligations:
Defined contribution plans:

Contributions in respect of Employees Provident Fund which are defined contribution schemes, are made to a
fund administered and managed by the Government of India and are charged as an expense based on the
amount of contribution required to be made and when service are rendered by the employees.

Defined benefit plans
Gratuity:

The Company accounts for its liability towards Gratuity based on actuarial valuation made by an independent
actuary as at the balance sheet date using projected unit credit method. The liability recognized in the balance
sheet in respect of the gratuity plan is the present value of the defined benefit obligation at the end of the
reporting period less the fair value of the plant assets.

The present value of the defined benefit obligation is determined by discounting the estimated future cash
outflows by reference to market yields at the end of the reporting period on government bonds that have terms
approximating to the terms of the related obligation. The net interest cost is calculated by applying the discount
rate to the net balance of the defined obligation and the fair value of plan assets. This cost is included in the
employee benefit expense in the statement of profit and loss. Remeasurement gains and losses arising from
experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are recognized in the period in which they occur,
directly in other comprehensive income. Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation resulting
from plan amendments or curtailments are recognized immediately in the statement of profit and loss as past
service cost.

Compensated absences:

The employees of the Company are entitled to compensate absences. The employees can carry-forward a
portion of the unutilized accrued compensated absence and utilize it in future periods or receive cash
compensation at retirement or termination of employment for the unutilized accrued compensated absence.
The Company records an obligation for compensated absences in the period in which the employee renders the
services that increase this entitlement. The Company measures the expected cost of compensated absence
based on actuarial valuation made by an independent actuary as at the balance sheet date on projected unit
credit method.
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Share based payments
The Company recognizes compensation expense relating to share based payments in the statement of profit
and loss, using fair value in accordance with Ind AS 102, Share based payments.

The Stock options are measured at the fair value of the equity instruments at the grant date, based on option
valuation model (Black Scholes model). The fair value determined at the grant date of the stock options is
expensed on a straight-line basis over the vesting period, based on the Company’s estimate of the equity
instruments that will eventually vest, with a corresponding increase in share-based payments reserve in equity.

At the end of each reporting period, the Company revises its estimate of the number of equity instruments
expected to vest. The impact of the original estimates, if any, is recognised in statement of profit and loss such
that the cumulative expense reflects the revised estimate, with a corresponding adjustment to the share-based
payments reserve in equity. The equity settlement component is not remeasured at each reporting date. The
cash settlement component is remeasured at each reporting date and at settlement date based on the fair value
of the liability with any changes in the fair value recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Other short-term employee benefits

Other short-term employee benefits and performance incentives expected to be paid in exchange for the
services rendered by employees are recognized during the period when the employee renders service.

Operating Segments
The Company's Chief operating decision maker is the Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer who
evaluates Company’s performance and allocates resources based on an analysis of various performance

indicators by business verticals and geographical segmentation of customers.

The company is engaged in providing total electronic manufacturing solutions single operating segment "Total
electronic manufacturing solutions" which is considered as the primary business segment.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets, which
are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are added
to the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale.
All other borrowing costs are recognized in profit or loss in the period in which they are incurred.

Financial instruments

Initial recognition:

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognized when a Company entity becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instruments.
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Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value except trade receivable. Transaction
costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other
than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from
the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs
directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
are recognized immediately in profit or loss. Trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing
component or for which the Company has applied the practical expedient are measured at the transaction price
determined under Ind AS 115. Refer to the accounting policies in section 2.13 Revenue recognition.

Subsequent Measurement:
Financial assets

All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are recognized and derecognized on a trade date basis.
Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within
the time frame established by regulation or convention in the marketplace.

All recognized financial assets are subsequently measured in their entirety at either amortized cost or fair value,
depending on the classification of the financial assets

Classification of financial assets:

Financial assets carried at amortized cost:

Afinancial asset is subsequently measured at amortized cost if it is held within a business model whose objective
is to hold the asset in order to collect contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of the financial asset give
rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding.

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income:

A financial asset is subsequently measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if it is held within
a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial
assets and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. The Company has made an irrevocable
election for its investments which are classified as equity instruments to present the subsequent changes in fair
value in other comprehensive income based on its business model.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss:
A financial asset which is not classified in any of the above categories are subsequently fair valued through profit
or loss.

Financial liability:
All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method. For

trade and other payables maturing within one year from the Balance Sheet date, the carrying amounts
approximate fair value due to the short maturity of these instruments.




c)

Cyient DLM Limited (Formerly known as Cyient DLM Private Limited)

CIN No.: U31909TG1993PLC141346

Significant accounting policies and other explanatory information forming part of financial
statements

(All amounts in X million, except share and per share data and where otherwise stated)

Financial liabilities at FVTPL

Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL when the financial liability is either contingent consideration
recognized by the Company as an acquirer in a business combination to which Ind AS 103 applies or is held for
trading or it is designated as at FVTPL.

A financial liability is classified as held for trading if:

® Ithas been incurred principally for the purpose of repurchasing it in the near term; or

® on initial recognition it is part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that the Company
manages together and has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

e Itis a derivative that is not designated and effective as a hedging instrument.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with any gains or losses arising on remeasurement
recognized in profit or loss. The net gain or loss recognized in profit or loss incorporates any interest paid on the
financial liability and is included in the ‘Other income' line item.

However, for non-held-for-trading financial liabilities that are designated as at FVTPL, the amount of change in
the fair value of the financial liability that is attributable to changes in the credit risk of that liability is recognized
in other comprehensive income, unless the recognition of the effects of changes in the liability’s credit risk in
other comprehensive income would create or enlarge an accounting mismatch in profit or loss, in which case
these effects of changes in credit risk are recognized in profit or loss. The remaining amount of change in the
fair value of liability is always recognized in profit or loss. Changes in fair value attributable to a financial liability’s
credit risk that are recognized in other comprehensive income are reflected immediately in retained earnings
and are not subsequently reclassified to profit or loss.

Financial Liability subsequently measured at amortized cost

Financial liabilities that are not held-for-trading and are not designated as at FVTPL are measured at amortized
cost at the end of subsequent accounting periods. The carrying amounts of financial liabilities that are
subsequently measured at amortized cost are determined based on the effective interest method. Interest

expense that is not capitalized as part of costs of an asset is included in the 'Finance costs' line item

Foreign exchange gains and losses:

For foreign currency denominated financial assets measured at amortized cost and FVTPL, the exchange
differences are recognized in profit or loss except for those which are designated as hedging instruments in a
hedging relationship.

Changes in the carrying amount of investments in equity instruments at FVTOCI relating to changes in foreign
currency rates are recognized in other comprehensive income.
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For the purposes of recognizing foreign exchange gains and losses, FVTOCI debt instruments are treated as
financial assets measured at amortized cost. Thus, the exchange differences on the amortized cost are
recognized in profit or loss and other changes in the fair value of FVTOCI financial assets are recognized in other
comprehensive income.

For financial liabilities that are denominated in a foreign currency and are measured at amortized cost at the
end of each reporting period, the foreign exchange gains and losses are determined based on the amortized cost
of the instruments and are recognized in ‘Other income’

The fair value of financial liabilities denominated in a foreign currency is determined in that foreign currency and
translated at the spot rate at the end of the reporting period. For financial liabilities that are measured as at
FVTPL, the foreign exchange component forms part of the fair value gains or losses and is recognized in profit or
loss.

De-recognition of financial assets and liahilities:

Financial assets

The Company derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire,
or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to
another party. If the Company retains substantially all the risk and rewards of ownership of a transferred
financial asset, the Company continues to recognize the financial asset and also recognizes a collateralized
borrowing for the proceeds received.

On de-recognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference between the asset's carrying amount and the
sum of the consideration received and receivable and the cumulative gain or loss that had been recognized in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity is recognized in profit or loss if such gain or loss would
have otherwise been recognized in profit or loss on disposal of that financial asset.

Financial liabilities

The Company derecognizes financial liabilities when, and only when, the Company’s obligations are discharged,
cancelled or have expired. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability derecognized
and the consideration paid and payable is recognized in statement of profit and loss.

2.18 Determination of fair values

In determining the fair value of its financial instruments, the Company uses a variety of methods and
assumptions that are based on market conditions and risks existing at each reporting date. The methods used
to determine fair value include discounted cash flow analysis, available quoted market prices and dealer quotes.
All methods of assessing fair value result in general approximation of value, and such value may never actually
be realized.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that price is directly observable
or estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the
Company considers the characteristics of asset or liability of market participants when pricing the asset or
liability at the measurement date.
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Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these Financial statements is determined on such a
basis, except for share-based payment transactions that are within the scope of Ind AS 102, leasing transactions
that are within the scope of Ind AS 116, and measurements that have some similarities to fair value but are not
fair value, such as net realizable value in Ind AS 2 or value in use in Ind AS 36.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements are categorized into Level 1, 2, or 3 based
on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are observable and the significance of the
inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which are described as follows:
e Level 1inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that
the entity can access at the measurement date;
e Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within Level 1, that are observable
for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and
e Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

Impairment of assets

Financial assets

The Company recognises loss allowances using the expected credit loss (ECL) model for the financial assets which
are not fair valued through statement of profit and loss. Loss allowance for trade receivables with no significant
financing component is measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECL. For all other financial assets, expected
credit losses are measured at an amount equal to the 12-month ECL, unless there has been a significant increase
in credit risk from initial recognition in which case those are measured at lifetime ECL. The amount of expected
credit losses (or reversal) that is required to adjust the loss allowance at the reporting date to the amount that
is required to be recognised as an impairment gain or loss in statement of profit and loss.

For trade receivables, the Company applies the simplified approach permitted by Ind AS 109 Financial
Instruments, which requires expected lifetime losses to be recognized from initial recognition of the receivables.
As a practical expedient, the Company uses a provision matrix to determine impairment loss of its trade
receivables. The provision matrix is based on its historically observed default rates over the expected life of the
trade receivable and is adjusted for forward looking estimates. The ECL loss allowance (or reversal) during the
year is recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

Non-financial assets

Intangible assets, Intangible assets under development, property, plant and equipment and ROU assets are
evaluated for recoverability whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that their carrying amounts
may not be recoverable. For the purpose of impairment testing, the recoverable amount (i.e. the higher of the
fair value less cost to sell and the value-in-use) is determined on an individual asset basis unless the asset does
not generate cash flows that are largely independent of those from other assets. In such cases, the recoverable
amount is determined for the CGU to which the asset belongs. Intangible assets under development are tested
for impairment annually. The Company bases its impairment calculation on detailed budgets and forecast
calculations, which are prepared separately for each of the Company’s CGUs to which the individual assets are
allocated.
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If such assets are considered to be impaired, the impairment to be recognized in the statement of profit and loss
is measured by the amount by which the carrying value of the assets exceeds the estimated recoverable amount
of the asset. An impairment loss is reversed in the statement of profit and loss if there has been a change in the
estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. The carrying amount of the asset s increased to its revised
recoverable amount, provided that this amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been

determined (net of any accumulated amortization or depreciation) had no impairment loss been recognized for
the asset in prior years.

Earnings per share:

The Company presents basic and diluted earnings per share (“EPS”) data for its ordinary shares. Basic EPS is
calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company by the weighted
average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year. Diluted EPS is determined by adjusting the profit
or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders and the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding
for the effects of all dilutive potential ordinary shares.

New and amended standards

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has notified Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2023
dated 31 March 2023 to amend the following Ind AS which are effective from 01 April 2023.

Definition of Accounting Estimates - Amendments to Ind AS 8

The amendments clarify the distinction between changes in accounting estimates and changes in accounting
policies and the correction of errors. It has also been clarified how entities use measurement techniques and
inputs to develop accounting estimates.

The amendments are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 April 2023 and apply to
changes in accounting policies and changes in accounting estimates that occur on or after the start of that period.
The Company has evaluated the amendments and impact is not expected to material.

Disclosure of Accounting Policies - Amendments to Ind AS 1

The amendments aim to help entities provide accounting policy disclosures that are more useful by replacing
the requirement for entities to disclose their ‘significant’ accounting policies with a requirement to disclose their
‘material’ accounting policies and adding guidance on how entities apply the concept of materiality in making
decisions about accounting policy disclosures.

The amendments to Ind AS 1 are applicable for annual periods beginning on or after 1 April 2023. Consequential
amendments have been made in Ind AS 107. The Company has evaluated the amendments and impact is not
expected to material.
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Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising from a Single Transaction - Amendments to Ind AS 12

The amendments narrow the scope of the initial recognition exception under Ind AS 12, so that it no longer
applies to transactions that give rise to equal taxable and deductible temporary differences.

The amendments should be applied to transactions that occur on or after the beginning of the earliest
comparative period presented. In addition, at the beginning of the earliest comparative period presented, a
deferred tax asset (provided that sufficient taxable profit is available) and a deferred tax liability should also be
recognised for all deductible and taxable temporary differences associated with leases and decommissioning
obligations. Consequential amendments have been made in Ind AS 101. The amendments to Ind AS 12 are
applicable for annual periods beginning on or after 1 April 2023. The Company has evaluated the amendments
and impact is not expected to material.
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3A. Property, plant and

Particulars Avat

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Carrying amount of:
Buildings. 75373 797.34
Computers 3344 2737
Plant and equipment 300 45 352.67
Office equipment 1169 8.22
Furniture and fixtures 55.59 62.37
Electrical installations 1519 15.66
Vehicles 001 001
Tools and equipment 47 40 30.79
Total 1,217.50 1,294.83
Naotes :
Movement in the carrying amount of praperty, plant and equipment is as below:

Particulars Buildings Computers Plamt and Office equipment Femniture and Elecarical Vehicles Tmﬂs and Total cwip
fixtures installations equipment

1. Gross carrying value
Balance as at April 1, 2021 894.69 85.17| 832.49 28.72 140.00| 37.54) 0.27| 119.29 2,138.17 23.16
Additions 750 8.94) 17.03 033 552 250) 647 48.69 59.44
Disposals {0.73) (2.00) (4.21) (0.86) {1.23) (0.08), 9.11) (48.69)
Balance as at March 31, 2022 901.46 92.11 845.31 28.19 144.29 40.44 0.27 125.68 2,177.75 33.91|
Additions 6.14 17.79 9.19 691 434 205 s 28.60 75.02 54.45
|Disposals - (1.87) (70.85) - (319) (0.08), - - (75.99) (75.02)
Balance as at March 31, 2023 907.60 108.03 783.65 35.10 145.44 42.41 0.27 154.28 2,176.78 13.34
Il. Accumulated depreciation
Balance as at April 1, 2021 55.91 47.47 437.32 18.10 71.73 22.41 0.26 84.08 737.28 -
Depreciation for the year 48.67 17.32 5599 246 1100 237 - 1083 148.64 -
Disposals {0.46) {0.45) {0.67) {0.59) {0 81) - - (0.02) (3.00) -
Balance as at March 31, 2022 104.12 64.34 492.64 19.97 81.92 24.78 0.26 94.89 882.92 -
Depreciation for the year 49.75 12.04 56.12 3.44 10.95 2,50 11.99 146.79
Disposals - (1.79) (65.56) - (3.02) (0.06)} - - (70.43) -
Balance as at March 31, 2023 153.87 74.59 483.20 23.41 89.85 27.22 0.26 106.88 959.28 -
111, Carrying Amounts (I-11)
Balance as at March 31, 2022 797.34 21.77 352.67 8.22 62.37 15.66 0.01 30.79 1,294.83 33.91
Balance as at March 31, 2023 753.73 33.44 300.45 11.69 55.59 15.19 0.01 47.40 1,217.50 13.34
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3B. Leases

(a) Right of use assets:

Particulars Leasehold land Buildings Total

Balance as at April 1, 2021 383.08 37.03 420.11
Additions . 5 R
Deletions . - -

Depreciation (refer note 26) (22.21) (15.04) (37.25)
Balance as at March 31, 2022 360.87 2199 382.86
Additions - % -
Deletions . =

Depreciation (refer note 26) (22.54) (15.04) (37.58)
Balance as at March 31, 2023 338.33 6.95 345.28

b) Current and non-current lease liabilities:

Particulars As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022
Current lease liabilities 53.21 59.71
Non-current lease liabilities 362.56 377.19
Total 415.77 436.90
The following is the movement in lease liabilities during the year ended:

Particulars As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022
Balance at the beginning of the year 436.90 452.54
Additions - =
Deletions "
Finance cost accrued during the period (refer note 25) 39.45 41.32
Finance cost transferred to CWIP : z
Payment of lease liabilities (60.58) (56.96)
Bal at the end of the year 415.77 436.90

The table below provides details regarding contractual maturities of lease liabili

ties on an undiscounted basis:

Particulars As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022
Less than one year 51.86 62.11
One to five years 169.07 177.50
More than five years 560.75 604.18
Total 781.68 843.79

The Company does not face a significant liquidity risk with regard to its lease liabilities, as the current assets are sufficient to meet the obligations related to lease liabilities as and when they fall due.

3C. Capital work-in-progress ageing schedule

(i) Ageing of capital work-in-progress:

Particulars Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2 -3 years More than 3 years Total
I as at March 31, 2023
Projects in progress 13.34 - - - 13.34
Total 13.34 - - - 13.34
Balance as at March 31, 2022
Projects in progress 20.52 7.67 5.72 - 33.91
Total 20.52 7.67 5.72 - 33.91

Note 1: Projects in progress are nat overdue and not exceeded the cost.
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4. Goodwill
i As at
Pacticyiars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Balance at beginning of year 30.30 30.30
Balance at end of the year* 30.30 30.30

*Represents Goodwill acquired on acquisition of Techno Tools, which is tested for impairment on an annual basis. The estimated value-in-use is based on future cash flows
(discounted @ 14%) for a forecast period of 5 years and a nil terminal growth rate. An analysis of the sensitivity of the computation to a change in key parameters
(operating margin, discount rates), based on reasonably probable assumptions, did not identify any probable scenario in which the recoverable amount of Goodwill would

decrease below its carrying amount.

5. Other intangible assets

Particulars et
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Carrying amount of:
Computer software 16.46 14.12
Total 16.46 14,12
Movement in the carrying amount of intangible assets is as below:
Particulars Computer software Total
I. Gross carrying amount
Balance as at April 1, 2021 91,59 91.59
Additions 16.15 16.15
Disposals - -
Balance as at March 31, 2022 107.74 107.74
Additions 12.12 12.12
Disposals - -
Balance as at March 31, 2023 119.86 119.86
Il. Accumulated amortisation
Balance as at April 1, 2021 86.65 86.65
Amortisation for the year 6.97 6.97
Disposals - =
Balance as at March 31, 2022 93.62 93.62
Amortisation for the period 9.78 9.78
Disposals = -
Balance as at March 31, 2023 103.40 103.40
1Il. Carrying amounts (I-11)
Balance as at March 31, 2022 14,12 14.12
Balance as at March 31, 2023 16.46 16.46
6. Investments
. As at
Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Investments carried at fair value through other comprehensive income (unquoted), Full paid up
Equity instruments of other entities (Unquoted) 895,22 3.22
Total 895.22 3.22

Note: Investments at fair value through OCI (fully paid) reflect investment in unquoted equity securities. These equity shares are designated as FVTOCl as they are not held
for trading purpose and are not in similar line of business as the company. Thus, disclosing their fair value fluctuation in profit or loss will not reflect the purpose of holding.

Note (a) Details of investments

Particulars As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022
No. of Shares Amount No. of Shares Amount
Equity instruments of other entities (unquoted)
Mysore ESDM Cluster 3,193,237 3.22 3,193,237 3.22
Innovation Communications Systems Private Limited 2,342,869 892.00 - -
Note (b): Carrying value of investments:
Particulars As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Aggregate amount of Investments carried at fair value through 895.22 3.22
other comprehensive income
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7. Other financial assets

_ As at
Particulars
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Non-current
(at amortised cost)
Unsecured, considered good

Security deposits 34.97 38.80
Total 34.97 38.80
Current
(at amortised cost)
Unsecured, considerd good

Security deposits 5.00 -

Interest accrued on deposit accounts 48.30 21.19

Advance to employees 1.36 1.14
Total 54.66 22.33
Total other financial assets 89.63 61.13
8. Other assets (Unsecured, considered good) -

. As at
RaIsiliare March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

8A: Non-current :

Capital advances 22.63 5.35

Prepaid expenses 15.78 2.76
Total 38.41 8.11
8B: Current :

Prepaid expenses 35.11 20.76

Advance to suppliers 340.62 277.87

Balances with government authorities 346,61 134.65

Deferred cantract costs - 14.53

Share Issue expenses (Refer note 1 and 2 below) 61.93

Other current assets 13.63 11.89
Total 797.90 459.70
Total other assets 836.31 467.81

Note 1: During the year ended 31 March 2023, the Company has incurred share issue expenses in connection with proposed public offer of equity shares of which Rs.
61.93 is accounted for various services received for Initial Public Offering (IPO) which will be adjusted with equity on issue of shares.

Note 2: Share issue expenses includes auditor remuneration in relation to proposed IPO of Rs. 10 (March 31, 2022: Rs. Nil)

9. Inventories (Valued at lower of cost or net realisable value)

Particulars s g
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Raw materials 3,896.08 2,219.90
Work-in-progress 235.97 291.94
Finished goods 99.35 153.99
Consumables & stores 19.43 29.79
Total 4,250.83 2,695.62
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10. Trade receivables (at amortised cost)

Particulars Asat
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Trade receivables
Unsecured, considered good* 1,698.85 1,599.78
Less: Allowance for expected credit loss (81.38) (76.53)
1,617.48 1,523.25
Trade receivables - credit impaired - unsecured 4371 4747
Less; Allowance for cre pairment (43.71) (47.47)
Total 1,617.48 1,523.25

* includes amount receivable from related parties (refer note 30)

Note:

Expected Credit Loss (ECL):

The Campany's exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual characteristics of each customer. Credit risk is managed through credit approvals, establishing credit limits and continuously monitoring the
creditworthiness of customers to which the company grants credit terms in the normal course of business. The average credit period is between 60-90 days. Before accepting any new customer, the Company uses an internal
credit scoring system to assess the potential customer's credit quality and defines credit limits for each customer. Limits and scoring attributed to customers are reviewed once a year.

As a practical expedient (Ind AS 109 B5.5,35), the Company uses a provision matrix to determine impairment loss of its trade receivables. The provision matrix is based on its historically observed default rates over the expected
life of the trade receivable and is adjusted for forward looking estimates. Accordingly, the Company creates provision for past due receivables less than 270 days ranging between 1%-30% and 100% for the recewvables due beyond
270 days. The ECL allowance (or reversal) during the year is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

As at March 31, 2023

Ageing for receivables Not Due Less than 6 months 6 months to 1 year 1-2years 2-3years  More than 3 year Total

Undisputed Trade Receivables
Considered good 1,108.02 504.07 39.17 14.86 19.99 1275 1,698.85
Disputed Trade Receivables

Credit impaired - - - 43.71 43171
Total 1,108.02 504.07 39.17 14.86 19.99 56.46 1,742.56
Less : All e for credit impairment and expected credit loss (125.08)
Balance at the end of the year 1,617.48
As at March 31, 2022
Ageing for receivables Not Due Less than 6 months 6 months to 1 year 1-2years 2 - 3years More than 3 year Total

Undisputed Trade Receivables
Considered good 1,273.92 191.07 72.21 2276 3.57 36.25 1,599.78
Disputed Trade Receivables

Credit impaired = & 5. - 11.38 36.09 47.47
Total 1,273.92 191.07 72.21 22.76 14.95 72.34 1,647.25
Less : Allowance for credit impairment and expected credit lass (124.00))
Balance at the end of the year 1,523.25

in the d credit loss Asue
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Balance at the beginning of the year 124.00 137.15
Provision made during the year (net of reversals) (refer note 27) 13.89 (13.15)
Bad debts written off {12.81)
Balance at the end of the year 125.08 124.00
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11: Cash and Bank Balances

11A. Cash and cash equivalents

5 As at
Particulars
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Balances with banks
in current accounts 582.56 707.29
Cash on hand 0.01 0.01
Remittances in transit 190.84 61.29
Total 773.41 768.59
11B. Other bank balances
" As at
Partculars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Deposits held as margin money/security for bank guarantees 902.60 449.49
Total 902.60 449.49

Deposits held as margin money is towards non-fund based limits sanctioned by the bank for establishment of bank guarantee and letter of credits.

Note :

Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities:

For the year ended March 31, 2023:

Particulars Marc:;:,tzuzz Additions Proceeds Repayment Foreign exchange hs at:::;‘:h 31
Non-current borrowings (including current portion) 995.63 - = . 995.63
Current borrowings (net) 1,936.30 - 4,111.83 (3,893.07) {5.95) 2,149.11
Lease liabilities 436.50 39.45 - (60.58) - 415.77
Total liabilities from financing activities 3,368.83 39.45 4,111.83 (3,953.65) (5.95) 3,560.51
For the year end March 31, 2022:

Particulars Marc:::,tmn Additions Proceeds Repayment Foreign exchange Mar::;:,tzozz
Non-current borrowings (including current portion) §95.63 = = = §95.63
Current borrowings (net) 1,342.02 : 2,551.91 (1,961.18) 3.55 1,936.30
Lease liabilities 452.54 41.32 - (56.96) = 436.90
Total liabilities from financing activities 2,790.18 41.32 2,551.91 (2,018.14) 3.55 3,368.83
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12. Equity share capital

Particulars hsat
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Authorised share capital:
85,000,000 (March 31, 2022 : 4,750,000, March 31, 2021 : 4,750,000) equity shares of X 10 each 100.00 47.50
Issued and subscribed capital:
52,866,000 (March 31, 2022: 1,367,000, March 31, 2021: 1,367,000) fully paid up equity shares of X 10 each 528.66 13.67
Total 528.66 13.67]

i. On September 9, 2022, the Company allotted 1,570,000 fully paid-up equity shares of face value of % 10/- each at issue price of X 566 per share, pursuant to a rights issue.
ii. On December 14, 2022, the Company allotted 4,39,29,000 fully paid-up equity shares of face value of  10/- each, pursuant to a bonus issue.
iii. The Company has neither issued any shares with differential voting rights nor issued any sweat equity shares during the year ended March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022.

Note:
(A) Reconciliation of Equity shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year:
4 As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022
Particulars
No of shares held Amount No of shares held Amount
Balance as at beginning of the year 1,367,000 13.67 1,367,000 13.67
Add: Issue of shares in the current year 1,570,000 15.70 - -
Add: Issue of Bonus shares in the current year 49,929,000 499.29 - -
Balance as at end of the year 52,866,000 528.66 1,367,000 13.67

(B) Details of shares held by each shareholder holding more than 5% shares

As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022
f th hold: Idi i b f i i
Name of the shareholder Number of shares held % holding of equity Number of shares | % holding of equity
shares held shares
Fully paid up equity shares
Cyient Limited (Holding company) 52,866,000 100.00%; 1,367,000 100.00%,

As per records of the Company, including its register of shareholders and other declarations received from the shareholders regarding beneficial interest, the above shareholding
represents both legal and beneficial ownership of shares.

(€) Details of Shares held by promoters at the end of the year

Number of shares % of Holding of % Change during the
Name of the promoter S
March 31, 2022 | Change | March 31, 2023 equity shares Year
Cyient Limited (Holding company) 1,36?,DUO| 51,499,DUD| 52,866,000 100.00%) 3767%
f Holdi % Ch ing th
Name of the promoter Number of shares %o ) aAding of e arkne the
March 31, 2021 | Change [ March 31, 2022 equity shares Year
Cyient Limited (Holding company) 1,367,000/ b 1,367,000 100.00% 0%

(D) Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to equity shares:

The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs.10 per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share. In the event of liquidation, the
equity shareholders are eligible to receive the remaining assets of the Company in proportion to their shareholding.

(E) Equity shares movement during the five years preceding March 31, 2023:
Pursuant to resolution passed by the Directors of the Company on December 13, 2022 and approved by the extraordinary general meeting held on December 14, 2022, the Company

has allotted 49,929,000 fully paid-up equity shares of face value of % 10 each by way of bonus issue to its shareholders bonus shares in the ratio of 1:17.

13. Other equity

As at
Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

(a) General reserve 3.72 3.72
(b) Securities premium

(i} As at beginning of the year 92.09 92.09

(ii) Premium on right issue of shares 872.92 -

(iii) Utilization for bonus shares (499.29)

(iv) As at end of the year 465.72 92.09
(c) Retained earnings

(i) As at beginning of the year 661.64 267.04

(i) Profit for the year 317.27 397.95

{iii} Other comprehensive Income 1.71 (3.35)

(iv) As at end of the year 980.62 661.64

Total 1,450.06 757.45

Nature and Purpose :

a) General reserve:

The general reserve is used from time to time to transfer profits from retained earnings for appropriation purposes. As the general reserve is created by a transfer from one
component of equity to anather and is not an item of other comprehensive income, items included in the general reserve will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss.

b) Securities premium:

Amounts received on issue of shares in excess of the par value has been classified as securities premium. The reserve is utilised in accordance with the provisions of the Companies
Act, 2013,

(c) Retained earnings

(i) Retained earnings comprises of prior years' undistributed earnings after taxes along with current year profit.

(i) Remeasurement gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are recognised in the period in which they occur, directly in other
comprehensive income. These are presented within retained earnings.
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14. Borrowings - at amortised cost

Particulars Asat
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Non-current
Unsecured

Term loan from related party (refer note 30) 995.63 995.63
Total 995.63 995.63
Current
Unsecured

Term Loan from related party - Current maturities of non-current borrowings - -

Working capital loan from related party (refer note 30) 540.00 540.00
Secured

Working capital loans from banks 1,609.11 1,396.30
Total 2,149.11 1,936.30
Total borrowings 3,144.74 2,931.93

Details of the borrowings along with their terms and conditions:

a. Term loan from related party:

The Company has obtained term loan of ¥ 1,000.00 from Cyient Limited for capital expenditure purpose, which is availed in various tranches
starting from February 2019 repayable in 16 guarterly instalments starting from the June 2023 for each tranche. During the current year, the
Company has renewed the term loan agreement with Cyient Limited. As per the renewal agreement, loan will repaid in 16 quarterly instalments
starting from June 2024 and accrued interest on term loan as at March 31, 2023 will be repaid proportionately along with the repayment of
principal amount. Outstanding balance of the term loan as at March 31, 2023 was X 995.63, March 31, 2022 was % 995.63, March 31, 2021: X

995.63 (ROI - 6.00% p.a). There is no default in the repayment of principal loan and interest amount.

b. Working capital loan from related party:

The Company has availed working capital loan repayable on demand from Cyient Limited whose outstanding balance as at March 31, 2023 is X
540.00 (ROI - 6.00% p.a.), March 31, 2022 is % 540.00 (RO - 6.00% p.a.). This loan is repayable on demand.

c. Working capital loans from banks:

i. The Company has availed working capital loans (repayable on demand) from various banks:

March 31, 2023

March 31, 2022

HDFC Bank

Loan outstanding

324.15

449.41

Range of interest

7.58% to 9.00%

6.00% to 8.15%

State Bank of India

Loan outstanding 580.86 200.00

Range of interest 8.45% to 8.65% 6.8%
Federal Bank

Loan outstanding 525.00 557.29

Range of interest 7.85% 6.00% to 7.00%
Axis Bank

Loan outstanding 108.99 -

Range of interest

7.6% to 8.55%

ii. The Company has availed Packing credit facility from various banks:

March 31, 2023

March 31, 2022

HDFC Bank
Loan outstanding 70.11 189.60
Range of interest 6.08% 1.6% to 1.9%

Security terms for working capital loans from banks:

i. First pari-passu charge on present and future current assets including stock and book debts of the Company.

ii. Second pari-passu charge on all existing and future movable fixed assets of the Company.

ii. Corporate guarantee from Cyient Limited.

iv. The quarterly returns or statements of current assets filed by the Company with banks are in agreement with the books of accounts.
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15. Other financial liabilities (at Amortised cost)

As at
Particulars
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Non-Current

Interest accrued but not due on borrowings* 166.32 113.10
Total 166.32 113.10
Current

Capital creditors 14.64 6.99

Interest accrued but not due on borrowings* 61.85 34.34
Total 76.49 41.33
* includes amount payable to related parties (refer note 14 & 30 for details)
16. Provisions

Particulars il
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Gratuity (refer note 29) 74.45 50.92
Compensated absences (refer note 29) 23.81 22.05
Total provisions 98.26 72.97
Non-current:

Gratuity 74.45 40.28

Compensated absences 20.82 19.33
Total 95.27 59.61
Current:

Gratuity s 10.64

Compensated absences 2.99 2.72
Total 2.99 13.36
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17. Income taxes
17.1 Tax Expense

A. Income tax exp /|benefit) recognised in the statement of profit and loss
: For the year ended For the year ended
Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31,2022
Current tax
In respect of current period 129.71 96.35
Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT) credit availed/created - -
129.71 96.35
Deferred tax expense/(benefit):
In respect of the current period (15.38) (11.51)
In respect of prior period - 24.51
(15.38) 13.00
Total 114.33 109.35
Note: Presently, the Company has opted for the application of lower tax rate of 22% (excluding surcharge and cess thereon) under the provisions of section 115BAA of Income Tax Act, 1961.
B. Income tax benefit ised in other comprehensive income
Particolars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Income tax benefit recognised directly in equity consists of:

Tax effect on remeasurements of the net defined benefit liability (0.57) 1.12
Total {0.57) 1.12
Bifurcation of the income tax recognised in other comprehensive income into:

Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss (0.57) 1.12

Items that may be reclassified to profit or loss -
€. Reconciliation of effective tax rate
The following is the recanciliation of the company's effective tax rate:

. For the year ended For the year ended
Particulars
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Profit before tax 431.60 507.30

Enacted rate in India 25.17% 25.17%
Computed expected tax expense 108.63 127.69
Tax effect of adjustments to reconcile expected tax expense:

Deferred tax asset nat recognised earlier/ (deferred tax liability reversing} during tax holiday (14.58)

period

Others 5.70 (3.76)
Income tax expense 114.33 109.35
17.2. Deferred tax assets and liabilities
A. The following is the analysis of deferred tax assets/(liabilities) presented in the balance sheet:

Particulars Az at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Deferred tax assets

Allowance for expected credit loss 31.48 31.21

Section 43B disallowances 28.64 22.80

MAT Credit Entitlement - &

Right of use assets/lease liabilities (refer note 38) 17.74 13.60

Others 3.90 =
Total (A) 81.76 67.61
Deferred tax liabilities

Property, plant and equipment and Intangible assets (27.97) (28.63)
Total (B) (27.97) (28.63)
Deferred tax asset, net (A+B) 53.79 38.98

Deferred tax assets have been recognised considering the utilisation plan against future taxable profits which are supported by existing and future sale orders.

B. Movement in deferred tax assets and liabilities

Property, plant and | Provision for employee Right of use Provision for MAT credit Others Total
Particulars equipment and benefits assets/lease liabilities doubtful debts entitlement

Intangible assets {refer note 3C)
Balance as at April 1, 2021 (24.05) 20.03 (4.15) 34.52 24.51 - 50.86
Recognised in P&L during the year (4.58) 1.65 17.75 (3.31) (24.51) - (13.00)
Recognised in OCI during the year - 1.12 - - - " 1.12
Balance as at March 31, 2022 (28.63) 22.80 13.60 31.21 G - 38.98
Recognised in P&L during the year 0.66 6.41 4.14 0.27 - 3.80 15.38
Recognised in OCI during the year - (0.57) - - - - (0.57)
Balance as at March 31, 2023 (27.97) 28.64 17.74 31.48 £ 3.90 53.79
17.3. Income tax assets and liabilities
The following is the analysis of income tax assets/(liabilities) presented in the Company) As at
balance sheet: March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Income tax assets, net

Advances income taxes 5.03 5.03

Income tax liabilities, net
Income tax payable 21.90 60.63
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18. Other liabilities

7 As at
Paiticutars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Non-Current

Advance from customers 260.83
Total - 260.83
Current

Advance from customers 2,022.84 1,134.83

Unearned revenues 254.15 o

Statutory remittances 8.94 7.57

Other current liabilities 6.43 13.08

Total 2,292.36 1,155.48
19. Trade Payables

Particulars L
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
(at amortised cost)
(i) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises (MSME) (refer note 34) 69.17 32.06

{ii) total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises * 2,783.45 1,892.79
Total 2,852.62 1,924.85
includes amount payable to related parties (refer note 30)

Trade payables are non-interest bearing and are normally settled on 60-day terms
As at March 31, 2023
Ageing for trade payable Unbilled Not Due Less than 1 year 1-2vyears 2-3vyears More than 3 Total
years
Dues ta MSME - 24.05 45.12 - = 69.17
Dues to other than MSME 613.08 723.77 1,012 64 433.96 o 2,783.45
Disputed dues - Dues to MSME - - - - =
Disputed dues - Dues to other than MSME . — = - -
Balance at the end of the year 613.08 747.82 1,057.76 433.96 - 2,852.62
As at March 31, 2022
Ageing for trade payable Unbilled Not Due Less than 1 year 1-2years 2-3years More than 3 Total
years

Dues to MSME - 32.06 - Z 32.06
Dues to other than MSME 716.40 672.58 503.81 - 1,892.79
Disputed dues - Dues ta MSME - - - -
|Disputed dues - Dues to other than MSME - - - -
Balance at the end of the year 716.40 704.64 503.81 - - 1,924.85
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20. Revenue from contract with customers

For the year ended

For the year ended

Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Sale of goods 8,176.09 7,155:57
Rendering of services 144.24 49.76
Total 8,320.33 7,205.33

The Company presents revenues net of indirect taxes in the statement of profit and loss.

1.Disaggregated revenue information

The table below presents disaggregated revenues from contracts with customers by contract type and geography. The Company believes that
this disaggregation best depicts how the nature, amount, timing and uncertainty of revenues and cash flows are affected.

Particulars

For the year ended
March 31, 2023

For the year ended
March 31, 2022

Type of goods or service

Sale of printed circuit boards and related products 8,176.09 7,155.57

Job work charges 144.24 49.76
Total 8,320.33 7,205.33
Based on geographical location of customers

Within India 3,352.30 3,964.10

Outside India 4,968.03 3,241.23
Total 8,320.33 7,205.33
Timing of revenue recognition

Goods transferred at a point in time 8,176.09 7,155.57

Services transferred over time 144.24 49.76
Total 8,320.33 7,205.33

2. Trade receivables and contract balances

Particulars

As at March 31, 2023

As at March 31, 2022

Trade receivables
Unearned revenue (Contract liabilities)

Advance from customers (Contract liabilities)

1,617.48
254,15

2,022.84

1,523.25

1,395.66

The Company classifies the right to consideration in exchange for deliverables as trade receivable. A trade receivable is a right to consideration
that is unconditional upon passage of time. Refer note 10 in Annexure V for details on expected credit loss.

Contract Liabilities

Advance from customers represents the amounts received from customers, which are adjusted against the future supplies against each

customer order upon delivery. Unearned revenues represents invoicing in excess of revenue.

Amount of revenue recognised from:

Particulars

For the year ended
March 31, 2023

For the year ended
March 31, 2022

Unearned revenue (Contract liabilities)
Advance from customers (Contract liabilities)

782.02

675.54

The remaining performance obligation disclosure provides the aggregate amount of the transaction price yet to be recognised as at the end of
the reporting period and an explanation as to when the Company expects to recognise these amounts in revenue. Applying the practical

expedient as given in Ind AS 115, the Company has not disclosed the remaining performance obligation related disclosures for contracts that

have original expected duration of one year or less.

21. Other income

Particulars

For the year ended
March 31, 2023

For the year ended
March 31, 2022

Interest income on financial assets carried at amortised cost
Bank deposits

Other non-operating income
Export incentives (refer note (i) below)
Reversal of expected credit loss allowance (net} (refer note 10)
Bad debts recovered
Profit on sale of property, plant and equipment
Foreign exchange gain (net)
Miscellaneous income

30.01 16.09
30.01 16.09
3.63 45.28
- 13.15

- 3.49
(5.56) 0.94
27.62 0.23
7.41 033
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22. Cost of materials consumed

Particulars

For the year ended

For the year ended

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Opening stock 2,219.90 1,190.73
Add: Purchases 8,017.71 6,582.05
Less: Closing stock (3,896.08) (2,219.90)
Cost of materials consumed 6,341.53 5,552.88

23. Changes in inventories of finished goods and work-in-progress

Particulars

For the year ended
March 31, 2023

For the year ended
March 31, 2022

Opening Stock:

Finished goods 153.99 225.70
Work-in-progress 291.94 106.97
445.93 332.67

Closing Stock:
Finished goods 99.35 153.99
Work-in-progress 235.97 291.94
335.32 445.93
Net Decrease / (Increase) 110.61 (113.26)

24. Employee benefits expense

For the year ended

For the year ended

FAHIRSER March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Salaries and wages, including bonus 568.73 477.28
Contribution to provident and other funds (refer note 29) 38.53 5.99
Share based expenses from Holding Company (refer note 36) 5.42 0.78
Staff welfare expenses 34.26 32.47
Total 646.94 516.52

25. Finance costs

Particulars

For the year ended
March 31, 2023

For the year ended
March 31, 2022

Interest expense -

Interest on borrowings from banks 144.62 67.65
Interest on borrowings from related parties (refer note 30) 92.14 81.64
Interest on others 20.38 -
Interest on lease liabilities (refer note 3B) 39.45 41.32
Other borrowing costs 18.57 29.14
Total 315.16 219.75
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26. Depreciation and amortisation expense

For the year ended

For the year ended

Particulars
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment (refer note 3A) 146.79 148.64
Depreciation of right-of-use assets (refer note 3B) 37.58 37.25
Amortisation of intangible assets (refer note 5) 9.78 6.97
Total 194.15 192.86

27. Other expenses

Particulars

For the year ended

For the year ended

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Rates and taxes 27.24 5:32
Insurance 24.88 17.18
Stores and spares consumed 46.81 29.05
Freight outwards 55.88 133.14
Travelling and conveyance 3.68 3.77
Communication 3.39 231
Printing and stationery 1.49 1.10
Power and fuel 37.97 33.48
Marketing expenses 17.81 68.98
Repairs and maintenance
- Machinery 3.96 28.22
- Others 41.45 3.69
Legal and professional charges 11.03 29.76
Expenditure for Corporate Social Responsibility 4.47 1.30
Foreign exchange loss (net) =
Expected credit loss allowance (net) (refer note 10) 13.89 <
Auditors' remuneration®
-For statutory audit 1.60 1.55
-For reimbursement of expenses - 0.01
Training and development 1.57 2.88
Miscellaneous expenses 46.33 47.05
Total 343.45 408.79

* Exclusive of applicable taxes. Also refer note 8.
Notes:
i. Expenditure for Corporate Social Responsibility:

The Company contributes towards Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) activities through Cyient Foundation and Cyient Urban Micro Skill Centre
Foundation. The Company has formed CSR committee as per Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 to formulate and recommend to the Board, a
Corporate Social Responsibility Policy which shall indicate the activities to be undertaken by the company as specified by law. The areas for CSR
activities are promoting education, adoption of schools, facilitating skill development, medical and other social projects. Expenses incurred on CSR
activities through Cyient Foundation and contributions towards other charitable institutions are charged to the statement of profit and loss under

'Other Expenses': April 2022 to March 2023 - X 4.47, April 2021 to March 2022 - X 1.30

Particulars

For the year ended
March 31, 2023

For the year ended
March 31, 2022

Gross amount required to be spent by the Company 4.47 1.29
Amount approved by the board to be spent during the year 4.47 1.29
Actual amount spent

1. Construction / acquisition of any asset - -
2. On purposes other than (1) above (in cash) 4.47 1.30
Shortfall/ (excess) - (0.01)

Heads of CSR Expenditure:

Particulars

For the year ended
March 31, 2023

For the year ended

_Adargh 31,2022

[Promatieq of education

4.47
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28. Contingent liabilities and Commitments

As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
(A) Contingent liabilities:
Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debt: - u
(B) Commitments:
(i) Contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not provided for (net of capital advances) 51.71 44.06/
Total 51.71 44.06

The Company has assessed that it is only possible, but not probable, that outflow of economic resources will be required in respect of these matters.

29. Employee benefits:
The employee benefit schemes are as under:

1 Defined contribution plans
i. Provident fund:

The Company makes provident fund contributions which are defined contribution plans for qualifying employees. Under the scheme, the Company is required to contribute a
specified percentage of the payroll costs to fund the benefits. These contributions are made to the Fund administered and managed by the Government of India. The Company's

monthly contributions are charged to the statement of profit and loss in the period they are incurred.
Total expense recognised during the year ended as follows:
i. Year ended March 2023 : % 19.96

ii. Year ended March 2022 : % 18.65 (Additionally, a provision reversal was made for % 18.10 (Mar '15-Feb '18), pursuant to final order from Assistant PF Commissioner)

2 Defined Benefit Plans
i. Gratuity:

In accordance with the 'Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972 of India, the Company provides for gratuity, a defined retirement benefit plan (the ‘Gratuity Plan') covering eligible
employees. Liabilities with regard to such gratuity plan are determined by an independent actuarial valuation and are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss in the period
determined. The gratuity plan is administered by the Company's own trust which has subscribed to the "Group Gratuity Scheme" of Life Insurance Corporation of India.

The present value of the defined benefit obligation (DBQ), and the related current service cost and past service cost, were measured using the projected unit credit method.

The principal assumptions used for the purposes of the actuarial valuations were as follows:

For the year ended
March 31, 2023

For the year ended
March 31, 2022

Discount rate (%) 7.43% 7.46%

Salary increase rate (%) 10.00% 10.00%
Attrition (%) 8.00% 8.00%
Mortality table IALM (2012-14) Ultimate IALM (2012-14) Ultimate
Retirement age 58 years 58 years

The following table sets out the defined benefit costs as per actuarial valuation for the Company.

Amounts recognised in statement of profit and loss in respect of these defined benefit plans are as follows:

For the year ended
March 31, 2023

For the year ended
March 31, 2022

Current service cost 14.76 5.08
Net interest cost
Interest expense on defined benefit obligation 5.88 2.44
Interest income on plan assets (2.06) (2.08)
Defined benefit cost included in P&L 18.58 5.44
For the year ended For the year ended
Remeasurement effects recognised in Other Comprehensive Income March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Actuarial (Gain) / Loss due to demographic assumptions change in defined benefit obligation - -
Actuarial (Gain) / Loss due to Financial assumptions change in defined benefit obligation 0.24 0.98
Actuarial (Gain) / Loss due to Experience on defined benefit obligation (2.23) 2.71
Return on plan assets (Greater)/Less than discount rate (0.29) 0.78
Components of defined benefit costs recognised in Other Comprehensive Income (2.28) 4.47
The amount included in the balance sheet arising from the entity's obligation in respect of its defined benefit plans is as follows:
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Present value of funded defined benefit obligation 102.77 79.85
Fair value of plan assets (28.32) (28.93)
Net liability arising from defined benefit obligation 74.45 50.92
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For the year ended For the year ended
Movement in the present value of the defined benefit obligation March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Projected benefit obligation at the beginning of the year 79.85 72.85
Current service cost 14.76 5.08
Interest cost 5.88 2.44
Acquisition 7.23 =
Actuarial loss/(gain) (1.99) 3.69
Benefits paid (2.96) (4.21)
|Defined benefit obligation at the end of the year 102.77 79.85
Change in Plan assets For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Plan assets at the beginning of the year 28.93 31.83
Return on plan assets 2.06 2.08
Employer contribution - 0.01
Benefits paid (2.96) (4.21)
Asset {loss)/Gain 0.29 (0.78)
Plan Assets at the end of the year 28.32 28.93

The average rate of increase in compensation levels is determined by the Company, considering factors such as, the Company’s past compensation revision trends and

management's estimate of future salary increases.

Composition of plan assets

Plan assets comprise of 100% insurer managed funds. Fund is managed by Life Insurance Corporation of India as per Insurance Regulatory and Development Authority of India
(IRDA) guidelines, category wise composition of the plan assets is not available.

Sensitivity Analysis

Reasonably possible changes at the reporting date to one of the relevant actuarial assumptions, holding other assumptions constant, would have affected the defined benefit

obligation by the amounts shown below.

. As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022
Particulars
Increase Decrease Increase Decrease
Discount rate (1% movement) (7.41) 8.46 (7.48) 8.71
Future salary growth (1% movement) 7.92 (7.15) 8.08 (7.14)

Maturity profile of defined benefit obligation (discounted cash flows):

Particulars As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022
Within 1 year 9.55 4.02
1-2 year 9.23 3.72
2-3 year 7.76 4.94
3-4 year 9.37 3.14
4-5 year 10.54 4.01
5-10 year 45.86 17.35
Payouts above 10 years 119.36 42.67
ii. Assumptions for comp ed absences:
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Discount rate (%) 7.43% 7.46%
Salary increase rate (%) 10.00% 10.00%
Attrition (%) 8.00% 8.00%
Leave availment ratio 5.00% 5.00%
Mortality table IALM (2012-14) Ultimate IALM (2012-14) Ultimate
Retirement age 58 years 58 years

The average duration of the defined benefit plan obligation at the end of the reporting period is 9.48 years (31 March 2022: 12.62 years).
The accrual for unutilised leave is determined for the entire available leave balance standing to the credit of the employees at year-end as per Company's policy. The value of such
leave balance eligible for carry forward, is determined by an independent actuarial valuation and charged to Statement of Profit and Loss in the period determined.

The average rate of increase in compensation levels is determined by the Company, considering factors suc

management’s estimate of future salary increases.

h as, the Company’s past compensation revision trends and
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30. Related Party Transactions
{i) The list of related parties of the Company is given below:

Name of the related party

Nature of relationship

Cyient Limited

Holding company

Cyient Inc.

Fellow subsidiary

Cyient GmbH

Fellow subsidiary

Cyient Schweiz GmbH

Fellow subsidiary

Cyient Singapore

Fellow subsidiary

Cyient Israel India Limited

Fellow subsidiary

Key Managerial Personnel:

BVR Mohan Reddy (w.e.f December 27, 2022)

Non-Executive Director, Non-Independent
Director

Ganesh Venkat Krishna Bodanapu

Chairman, Non-Executive Director, Non
Independent Director

Ajay Aggarwal (resigned w.e.f December 13, 2022)

Director

Rajendra Velagapudi

Managing Director

Jehangir Ardeshir (w.e.f December 13, 2022)

Independent Director

Vanitha Datla (w.e.f December 13, 2022)

Independent Director

Medan Pillutla (w.e.f December 27, 2022)

Independent Director

Shrinivas Kulkarni (w.e.f January 02, 2023)

Chief Financial officer (CFQ)

Anthony Montalbano {w.e.f January 02, 2023)

Chief Executive officer (CEO)

Suchitra R C (resigned w.e.f October 10, 2022)

Additional Director & Vice President
Operations

Parvati Ramachandra

Company Secretary

Nature of the trarisaction Farty e For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Revenue from contract with customers - Sale of Goods Cylent Limited 116 1095
Cyient Inc. 11.77 1.24
Marketing expenses Cyient Israel India Limited 17.52 15.01
Rent Payable Cyient Limited 0.05 -
Cyient Limited 90.33 37.38
Cyient GmbH 8.14 3.29
Reimbursement of expenses Cyient Schweiz GmbH 16.56 i
Cyient Singapore 12.95 6.81
Cyient Inc. 128.35 45.84
Working capital loan received Cyient Limited 210.00 825.00
Working capital loan paid Cyient Limited 210.00 600.00
Corporate guarantee received Cyient Limited 750.00 -
Purchase of investment Cyient Limited 892.00 -
Right issue of shares (Note 12} Cyient Limited 888.62 =
Interest on loan from holding company Cyient Limited 92.14 81.64
Parvati Ramachandra 1.67 1.58
Rajendra Velagapudi (Note 2) 16.37 16.15
Compensation to Key Managerial Personnel (Note 1) Shrinivas Kulkarni (Note 2) 3.98 =
Anthony Montalbano {Note 3) 36.14 «
Suchitra R C 7.78 7.43

Note 1 : The above figures do not include provisions for leave encashment, gratuity and premium paid for group health insurance, as separate actuarial valuation / premium paid are not available.

Nate 2 : Remuneration paid by Cyient Limited, Holding Company and is recharged to the Company.

Note 3 : Remuneration paid by Cyient Inc, fellow subsidiary and is recharged to the Company. The above figures includes compensation which is being amortized over the contractual period.
Note 4 : During the current year, the Company has allotted 49,929,000 equity shares of face value of % 10 each by way of bonus issue to its Cyient Limited in the ratio of 1:17 by way of capitalization of

free reserves amounting to Rs. 499.29.

(iii) Balances at the year-end:

Nature of the transaction Party name As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022
Cyient Limited 29.96 11.84
Trade Receivables Cyient Inc. 16.37 2.98
Cyient GmbH 0.38 -
Cyient Limited 363.55 254.96
Cyient GmbH 11.51 3.03
Trade Payables Cyient SFhweiz GmbH 16.56 &
Cyient Singapore 19.77 6.83
Cyient Israel India Limited 35.13 46.03
Cyient Inc. 197.74 69.39
Advance from customer Cyient Limited 2 7.20
Corporate guarantee outstanding Cyient Limited 4,470.00 3,720.00
Terms Loans Outstanding Cyient Limited 995.63 995.63
Working capital Loan outstanding Cyient Limited 540.00 540.00
Interest on loans outstanding Cyient Limited 228.17 145.47
31. Earnings per share
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Profit/({loss) for the year 317.27| 397.95
Basic and diluted:
Number of equity shares outstanding at the year end (refer note 12) 52,866,000 1,267,000
Weighted average number of equity shares at the year end (A) 2,274,589 1,367,000
Impact on account of Bonus Issue (refer Note below) (B) 38,668,014 23,239,000
Weighted average number of equity shares after Bonus Issue (A+B) 40,942,603 24,606,000
Earnings per share (%) 7.75 16.17

*There were no dilutive instruments outstanding during the year

Note : Pursuant to resolution passed by the Directors of the Company on December 13, 2022 and approved by the extraordinary ge:
equ =ras of face value of X 10 each by way of bonus issue to its shareholders bonus shares in the ratio of 1:17. Accordingly, ba
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32. Financial Instruments

32.1 Capital management

The Company manages its capital to ensure that it maximises the return to stakeholders through the optimisation of the capital structure. The Company monitors the return on capital. In order to optimise the
Company's position with regards to its borrowings, interest income and interest expense, treasury team performs a comprehensive corparate interest risk management by balancing the proportion of fixed rate
and floating rate financial instruments in its total portfolia.

32.1.1 Gearing ratio
The gearing ratio at end of the reporting period is as follows.

. As at
Particulars
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Borrowings* 3,144.74 2,931.93
Less: Cash and bank balances (1,676.01) (1,218.08)
Net debt 1,468.73 1,713.85
Total equity (refer note 12) 1,978.72 771.12
Net debt to equity 74% 222%

* Includes current, non-current and current maturities of non-current borrowings (refer note 14)

There have been no breaches in the financial covenants of any interest-bearing loans and borrowing in the current period. No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital
during the years ended March 31, 2023, March 31, 2022.

32.1.2: Financial Instruments by category

Particulars Carrying value as at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Financial assets:
Amortised cost
Trade receivables 1,617.48 1,523.25
Cash and cash equivalents 773.41 768.59
Other bank balances 902.60 449.49
Other financial assets 89.63 61.13
Fair value through other comprehensive income
Investments in other equity instruments (unquoted) 895.22 3.22
Total financial assets 4,278.34 2,805.68
Financial liabilities:
Amortised cost
Borrowings* 3,144.74 2,931.93
Trade payables 2,852.62 1,924.85
Lease liabilities 415.77 436.90
Other financial liabilities 242.81 154.43
Total financial liabilities 6,655.94 5,448.11

* Includes current, non-current and current maturities of non-current borrowings fram banks (refer note 14)

No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the years ended 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022

The management assessed that fair value of cash and cash equivalents and other bank balances, trade receivables, other financial assets, loans and deposits, trade payables, and other current financial liabilities
approximate their carrying amounts largely due to the short-term maturities of these instruments, and hence these are carried at amortised cost. Carrying value of unquoted instruments, loans from banks, other
non-current financial assets and non-current financial liabilities represents fair value which is estimated by discounting future cash flows using rates currently available for debt on similar terms, credit risk and
remaining maturities.

The fair value of the financial assets and liabilities is included at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a current transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale.

Investments in other equity instruments (unquoted) are measured at fair value through initial designation in accordance with Ind-AS 109,
32.1.3 Fair value hierarchy
Valuation technique and key inputs

Level 1 - Quoted prices (unadjusted) in an active markets for identical assets or liabilities.
Level 2 - Inputs other than quated prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly {i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e, derived from prices).
Level 3 - Inputs for the assets or liabilities that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs)

Quantitative disclosures of fair value measurement hierarchy for financial instruments

As at

Fair value measurement at the end of year
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Level 3

Investments in other equity instruments (unguoted) 895.22 322

The fair values of the unquoted equity instruments have been estimated using a DCF model. The valuation requires management to make certain assumptions about the model inputs, including forecast cash
flows, discount rate, and probabilities of the various estimates within the range used in management’s estimate of fair value for these unquoted equity investments.

There have been no transfers among Level 1, Level 2 and Level 3 during the year.
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32.1.4 Fair value measurements using significant unobservable inputs (level 3)
The following table presents changes in level 3 items for the year ended

Investments in other equity
Fair value measurement at the end of year instruments (ur d)

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Level 3
Opening balance 3.22 3.22
Investment (refer note 6) 892.00 -
Closing balance 895.22 3.22

Valuation inputs and relationships to fair value:
The following table summarises the quantitative information about the significant unobservable inputs used in level 3 fair value measurements.

Investments in other equity instruments (unquoted) Significant unobservable inputs Sensitivity of the
inputs to fair value |
As at Fair value Earnings growth factor for unquoted equity shares are estimated based |Any increase in the
March 31, 2023 89522 |Earnings growth rate an the market information of similar type of companies and also earnings growth
considering the economic environment impact. rate would result in a
March 31, 2022 322 Discount rates are determined using a capital asset pricing mocel to Any increase in the
. calculate a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the  |discount rate would
time value of maney and risk specific to that asset. result in a decrease in
the fair value.

32.2 Financial risk management

Financial risk factors

The Company's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company's primary focus is to foresee the unpredictability of financial markets and seek to minimize
potential adverse effects on its financial performance. The primary market risk to the Company is fareign exchange risk and interest rate risk. The Company's exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the
individual characteristic of each customer. The liquidity risk is measured by the Company's inability to meet its financial obligations as they become due.

Foreign exchange risk

The Company operates internationally and a major portion of the business is transacted in several currencies and consequently the Company is exposed to foreign exchange risk through its sales and services and
purchases from overseas suppliers in various foreign currencies. The exchange rate between the rupee and foreign currencies has changed substantially in recent years and may fluctuate substantially in the
future. Consequently, the results of the Company’s operations are adversely affected as the rupee appreciates/ depreciates against these currencies. The Company monitors and manages its financial risks by
analysing its foreign exchange expasures.

Sensitivity analysis:

Every 5% increase / decrease of the respective foreign currencies compared to functional currency of the Company would impact profit before tax by % 18.82 for the year ended March 31, 2023 and % 29.25 for
the year ended March 31, 2022

Interest Risk

There is no material interest risk relating to the Company's financial liabilities which are detailed in note 14.

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations, and arises principally from the Company’s receivables from
customers. Credit risk is managed through credit approvals, establishing credit limits and continuously monitoring the creditworthiness of customers to which the Company grants credit terms in the normal
course of business. The Company establishes an allowance for doubtful debts and impairment that represents its estimate of expected losses in respect of trade receivables.

The Company’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual characteristics of each customer. The demographics of the customer, including the default risk of the industry and country in which
the customer operates, also has an influence on credit risk assessment.

The following table gives details in respect of percentage of total receivables from top five customers and others:

Particulars Asat

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Receivable from top 5 customers 58% 79%
Others 42% 21%)

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they become due. The Company manages its liquidity risk by ensuring, as far as possible, that it will always have
sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risk to the Company’s reputation. The Company assessed the
concentration of risk with respect to refinancing its debt and concluded it to be low.

The Company had unutilized credit limits from banks as of March 31, 2023 % 579, March 31, 2022 2427.54
The Company had working capital of £ 948.23 (X 727.32 - as at March 31, 2022} and cash and bank balance of 1,676.01 ( % 1218.08 - as at March 31, 2022)

The table below provides details regarding the contractual maturities of significant financial liabilities (excluding borrowings and lease liabilities) as at March 31, 2023:

Particulars Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2 years and more

Trade payables 2,852.62 - -
Other financial liabilities 76.49 41.58 124.74
Total 2,929.11 41.58 124.74

The table below provides details regarding the contractual maturities of significant financial liabilities (excluding borrowings and lease liabilities) as at March 31, 2022

Particulars Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2 years and more

Trade and other payables 1,924.85 -
Other financial liabilities 41.33 28.28 84.82
Total 1,966.18 28.28 84.82

The Company's abligation towards payment of borrowings has been included in note 14,
The Company's abligation towards payment of lease liabilities has been included in note 3B
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33, Segment information

The Company's operations fall within a single operating segment "Electronic manufacturing solutions” which is considered as the primary reportable business segment.

The reporting of geographical segments is based on the location of customers i.e., Domestic (Within India) and Overseas (Outside India).

Geographical segment information

As at March 31, 2023

As at March 31, 2022

Particulars Within India Outside India Total Within India | Outside India Total
Revenue from operations 3,352.30 4,968.03 8,320.33 3,964.10 3,241.23 7,205.33
Non-current assets* 1,661.29 = 1,661.29 1,764.13 < 1,764.13

*Geographical non-current assets (property , plant and equipment, right of use assets, capital work-in-progress, goodwill, intangible assets and other non-current assets) are

allocated based on location of assets.

Information about major customers

For Year ended

Particulars March 31, 2023 Percentage March 31, 2022 Percentage
Revenue from top customers (*}) 3,451.47 53.17% 3,527.80 48.96%
Others 4,868.86 46.83% 3,677.53 51.04%
Total Revenue 8,320.33 100.00% 7,205.33 100.00%
“*Includes revenue from customers individually amounting to 10% or more of the Company's revenues.
34, Disclosures required under Section 22 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006
As at

Particulars

March 31, 2023

March 31, 2022

(i) Principal amount remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end of the accounting year

69.17

32.06

(ii) Interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end of the accounting year

(iii} The amount of interest paid along with the amounts of the payment made to the supplier beyond the

appointed day

(iv) The amount of interest due and payable for the year

(v) The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of the accounting year

(vi) The amount of further interest due and payable even in the succeeding year, until such date when the

interest dues as above are actually paid

Dues to Micro and Small Enterprises have been determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the basis of information collected by the Management.
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35, Ratio Analysis and its elements

Ratios Numerator Denominator March 31, 2023 | March 31, 2022 | % change Reasons
Current ratio Current Assets Current Liabilities 1.13 1.14 (1.12)%|NA
i . Shareholder”
Debt- Equity Ratio Total Debt ey = 1.80 237 (58.81)%|Note (1c)
Debt service =
. Interest & Lease
. - Earning for Debt
Debt Service Coverage ratio Safvica ** Payments + 0.19 0.36 (45.86)%|Note 1 (d)
Principal
Repayments
Average Note 1 {c) and
Return on Equity ratio Net Profits after taxes |Shareholder's 0.23 0.69 (66.73)% ote. - ACkan
. Note 1(f)
Equity
Inventory Turnover ratio Cost of goods sold Average Inventory 1.86 2.56 (27.43)%|Note 1 (e)
Net credit sales =
” ” v Average Trade
Trade Receivable Turnover Ratio Gross credit sales - . 5.30 3.81 39.24%|Note 1 (a)
Receivable
sales return
Net credit purchases = AverageTrad
Trade Payable Turnover Ratio Gross credit purchases VERAEE Arags 3.36 3.44 (2.47)%|NA
Payables
- purchase return
Working capital =
5 5 Net sales = Total sales
Net Capital Turnover Ratio Current assets — 8.77 991 (11.42)%(NA
sales return g
Current liabilities
, " : Net sales = Total
Net Profit ratio Net Profit 0.04 Q.06 (30.96)%|Note 1 (f)
sales - sales return
Capital Employed =
Return on Capital Employed Eaming=hieford TanglbleiNetWorh 0.13 0.18 (23.24)%|NA
interest and taxes + Total Debt*
Interest (Finance
Return on Investment# Investment - - -
Income)

# The Company does not have any income generated on investments

*Debt represents Borrowings and lease liabilities

**Net profit after taxes + Non-cash operating expenses like depreciation and amortizations + Interest + other adjustments like expected credit loss (net)

Note 1 : Improvement in ratio is due to:

a. Higher efficiency resulting in improved working capital

b. Issue of right shares and Bonus shares during the year ended March 2023.

c. Increase in repayment of working capital loan.

d. Increase in closing inventory on account of future orders

e. Decrease is on account of increase in finance cost and decrease in other income

36. Employee Share based expenses

(i) Cyient Limited ("Holding Company") of the Company instituted Associate stock option plan 2015 (ASOP 2015) in July 2015 and earmarked 1,200,000 equity shares of £ 5 each for
issue to the employees of the Holding Company and its subsidiaries. Under ASOP 2015, options will be issued to employees at an exercise price, which shall not be less than the
market price of the Holding Company on the date of grant. These options vest over a period ranging from one to three years from the date of grant, starting with 10% at the end of
first year, 15% at the end of one and half years, 20% after two years, 25% at the end of two and half years and 30% at the end of third year. Share based expenses incurred by
Holding Company are recharged to respective group companies. In this regard, the Company has accounted for share based expenses in the statement of profit and loss and a
carresponding liability towards amount payable to Holding Company.

Movements in stock options during the year

As at March 31, 2023

As at March 31, 2022

No. of Options Weighted [No. of Shares| Weighted
average average

exercise price exercise price

Options outstanding at the beginning of the year 9,953 473 - -
Granted - 11,840 473

Forfeited - - - -
Exercised (3,753) 473 (1,887) 473
Options outstanding at the end of the year 6,200 473 9,953 473

The fair value of options granted in the year was March 31, 2023 % Nil, March 31, 2022 112 to 129, March 31, 2021 % Nil. The fair value of options were priced using Black Scholes
pricing model. Grant date share price - X 455 - X 678 Dividend yield (%) - 1.7 - 2.9, Expected volatility (%) - 29.8 - 41,60, Risk-free interest (%) -

3-4.

4.49 - 7.9, Expected term (in years) -
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Notes forming part of the financial statements

(All amounts in ¥ millions, except share and per share data and where otherwise stated)

(i) Cyient Limited ("Holding Company") of the Company instituted the ARSU’s 2020 plan earmarking 1,050,000 shares of X 5 each which provided for grant of RSUs to eligible
associates of the Company and its subsidiaries. The Board of Directors recommended the establishment of the plan on January 16, 2020 and the shareholders approved the
recommendation of Board of Directors on March 5, 2020 through a pestal ballot. The RSUs will vest over a period of three years from the date of grant. Share based expenses
incurred by Holding Company are recharged to respective group companies. In this regard, the Company has accounted for share based expenses in the statement of profit and
loss and a corresponding liability towards amount payable to Holding Company.

Movements in stock options during the year

As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022
Paiiticiilars No. of Options Weighted No. of Shares| Weighted
average average
exercise price exercise price
Options outstanding at the beginning of the year 10,240 5 - -
Granted 440 5 10,240 5
Forfeited - - R _
Exercised (312) 5 - -
Options outstanding at the end of the year 10,368 15 10,240 5

The fair value of RSUs granted in the year was March 31, 2023 % 726 to 745, March 31, 2022 % 714 to 792, March 31, 2021 % Nil. The fair value of aptions were priced using Black
Scholes pricing model. Grant date share price - ¥ 811 - X 874 Dividend yield (%) - 2.6 - 2.9, Expected volatility (%) - 38.73 - 41.90, Risk-free interest (%) - 4.96 - 6.8, Expected term (in
years) - 3.

The total charge for the year relating to employee share based payment plans was March 31, 2023 5.42, March 31, 2022 0.78

37. Other Statutory information

{i) The Company does not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the company for holding any Benami property

(i) The Company does not have any transactions with companies struck off.

(iii) The Company does not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be registered with ROC beyond the statutory period.

{iv) The Company has not traded or invested in Crypto Currency or Virtual Currency during the financial year.

{v) The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government or any government authority.

(vi) The Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Intermediaries) with the understanding that the

intermediary shall:

(a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by ar on behalf of the company (Ultimate Beneficiaries); or
{a) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(vii) The Company has not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies}, including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in
writing or otherwise, that the company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on
behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries other than Issue proceeds
raised through Right’s Issue aggregating to Rs. 888 Mn during the year from Cyient Limited, Holding Company for acquiring Investment in ICS (refer note 6) during the year
ended March 2023.

(viii) The Company does not have any such transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax

assessments under the Income Tax Act 1961 (Such as, search or survey ar any other relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961.

38, Previous year figures have been regrouped / reclassified, where necessary, to conform to this year's classification.

Accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements
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